
ÓäÓÓx Ê 
"//��7""� Ê,� ] Ê�*��6 ] Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ ÊU Ê Ê* \ Ê �xÓ °{Ç{ °ÈÈÎÎ   U ÊÊ� \ Ê �xÓ °{Ç{ °£ÓÇ{ ÊU Êgreenwoodmn.com

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

7pm, Wednesday, June 3, 2020 
 

The regular meeting will be held by Zoom video-conferencing technology.  
Use this link to join the meeting ... 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82248227370?pwd=eVNITzdnTktQWHFobzBoamlBSngxZz09 
 

If you would like to test Zoom prior to the meeting, login at 6:45pm. 
If you have trouble with Zoom, call Councilman Fletcher at 952.224.5550. 
 

Regular Meeting The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (comments are limited to 3 minutes). The public  
may speak regarding other items during Matters from the Floor (see below).  
 

7:00pm 1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
7:01pm 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no discussion by the city council. 
Council members may remove any Consent Agenda item for discussion and separate consideration under Other Business. 
A. Approve: 05.06.20 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 05.06.20 City Council Worksession Minutes 
C. Approve: Apr Cash Summary Report (will be emailed separately) 
D. Approve: Apr Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: May Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers (will be emailed separately) 
F. Approve: Jun Payroll Register (will be emailed separately) 
G. Approve: LMCD Budget  
H. Approve: Res 16-20, Findings for Lot Combination, Fetters, 21170 & 21200 Minnetonka Blvd 

7:05pm 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. Comments are limited to  
3 minutes. Typically, the council will not take action on items presented at this time, but will refer items to staff for review, action,  
and / or recommendation for future council action.  

7:10pm 4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. City Engineer Dave Martini: Discuss 2020 Engineering Projects 
 a) Councilman Bill Cook and Brian Simmons: Overview of Inflow / Infiltration in Greenwood 
B. Announcement: July 4th BOAT Parade (watch newsletter and / or website for details) 

NONE 5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
NONE 6.   ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARINGS 
7:30pm 7.   PLANNING, ZONING & SUBDIVISION ITEMS 

A. Consider: Res 07-20, Conditional Use Permit Findings (grading and retaining walls) Precision 
Builders, LLC for 21750 Byron Circle 

B. 2nd Reading: Ord 299, Amending Section 1140.10 Subd 2(C) Lake Setbacks for Accessory 
Structures; Res 11-20, Summary of Ord 299 for Publication 

C. Consider: Res 17-20, Variance Findings for Placement of Air Conditioning Unit, Ranee Jacobus, 
5290 Meadville St. 

D. Consider: Res 18-20, CUP Amendment Findings for Grading, Alvin McQuinn, 4900 Meadville Street 
E. 1st Reading: Ord 301, Amending Zoning Ordinance re: Construction Hours 
F. Discuss: Potential Amendments to Small Cell Wireless Ordinance 

NONE 8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
8:30pm 9.   NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consider: Right-of-Way Encroachment Permit Application, Mark Krezowski, 5130 Meadville Street 
NONE 10.  OTHER BUSINESS  
8:40pm 11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Conrad: Planning Commission 
B. Cook: LMCD, SABLID, Public Works Committee 
C. Fletcher: LMCC, Fire, Administrative Committee 
D. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Public Works Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
E. Roy: Minnetonka Community Education 

9:00pm 12. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

Worksession In accordance with open meeting laws, worksessions are open to the public for viewing, but there will be no opportunity for 
public participation. The worksession will be held by Zoom video-conferencing technology. If you have trouble with Zoom, call Councilman Fletcher 
at 952.224.5550. Use this link ... https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86984944509?pwd=QXdEV282TlZ3aWdNZmJPcGRHWm1Edz09 
 

9:00pm 1.   CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
9:00pm 2.   Discuss 2021 City Services 
9:30pm 3.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



05-06-20 Greenwood City Council Worksession  |  Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Worksession 
 

Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Via Zoom Video Conferencing Technology 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the worksession to order at 10:30pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Kristi Conrad, Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Rob Roy 
Members Absent: None 
Staff Members Present: None 

 

Motion by Roy to approve the agenda. Second by Kind. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 
  
2.   DISCUSS CONTRACT FOR CITY SERVICES 

 

Mayor Kind shared that the Deephaven city administrator told her that Deephaven will not be able to provide public 
works and planning and zoning services for Greenwood beginning 01.01.21. Currently, Greenwood contracts for most 
services through the city of Deephaven. They provide meeting space, administrative services, bookkeeping, utility 
billing, zoning and planning, public works, and more.  
 
At the worksession, the city council discussed the situation and decided to explore all options for providing city services 
– including the option of staying with Deephaven for some services or contracting all city services with other providers.  

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Kind to adjourn the meeting at 11:10pm. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes.  



05-06-20 Greenwood City Council Meeting  |  Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Via Zoom Video Conferencing Technology 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Kristi Conrad, Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Rob Roy 
Members Absent: None 
Staff Members Present: City Zoning Administrator Pat Smith, City Engineer Dave Martini 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda with the following revisions: Add item AA Announcement Regarding 
Greenwood Clean-Up Day on 5/16 and add item BB Excelsior Blvd Driveway. Second by Cook. Motion passed 
5-0 on a roll call vote. 

  
2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approve: 04.01.20 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 04.16.20 to 04.23.20 Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting Minutes 
C. Approve: Mar Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: Mar Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: Apr Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
F. Approve: May Payroll Register 
G. Approve: Weed Removal Bid for City Docks and Meadville Boat Launch 
 

Consent agenda motion: Motion by Kind that the city council approves the proposal from Dive Guys  
to provide ongoing removal of loose weeds that at the city docks and Meadville boat launch during  
the summer of 2020 to be paid from the city marina fund. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a  
roll call vote. 

 

H. Approve: Public Access Procedures 
 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the consent agenda items A-H. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a  
roll call vote. 
 

3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

Maureen Burns, 5080 Meadville Street, asked 2 questions regarding the construction project at 5290 Meadville Street 
(Jacobus property) ... (1) How does the city know if the property owner is complying with the building volume 
requirement? (2) Why was the stop-work order lifted after the property owners withdrew their building volume variance 
request? Answers from the city council and staff: (1) The city requires as-built documentation signed by a licensed 
professional. If the as-built documents show the project does not comply, the property owner will be required to bring 
the project into compliance or apply for an after-the-fact variance. The as-built documents are reviewed by the city 
engineer and city zoning administrator to make sure everything looks right, but city staff does not conduct a physical 
inspection of the property to confirm measurements. (2) The stop-work order was lifted because the applicants decided 
to redesign their project to be in compliance with the city’s volume requirements. 
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

AA. Announcement: Greenwood Clean-Up Day is Saturday, 05.16.20. Make sure your items are curbside by 
7am. Only 1 trip will be made through the city. 

 
A. Announcement: Joint City Council & Planning Commission Worksession, 05.13.20, approximately 8pm, (to 

be held via Zoom video-conferencing technology or postponed due to COVID-19) 
 

The consensus of the council was to proceed with the joint worksession via Zoom on 5/13 rather 
than postpone. 
 
 
 
 

 



05-06-20 Greenwood City Council Meeting  |  Page 2 of 3 

B. City Engineer Dave Martini: Discuss 2020 Engineering Projects 
 

Motion by Cook to authorize the city engineer to conduct field work to determine the scope of work for the 
Minnetonka Blvd trail, talk with Shorewood regarding potential joint projects, and meet with Linwood 
property owners to discuss options. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 
 

5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. None 
 
 
 

6.   ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. None 
 

7.   PLANNING, ZONING & SUBDIVISION ITEMS 
 

A. Consider: Res 07-20, Conditional Use Permit Findings (grading and retaining walls) Precision Builders, 
LLC for 21750 Byron Circle 

 

Motion by Kind to continue action to the 06.03.20 could meeting unless the council does not receive a 
written extension from the applicant, in which case the city council will hold a special meeting to take 
action. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 

 
B. 1st Reading: Ord 299, Amending Section 1140.10 Subd 2(C) Lake Setbacks for Accessory Structures; 

Res 11-20, Summary of Ord 299 for Publication 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 299 amending section 
1140.10 subd 2(C) Lake Setbacks for Accessory Structures as amended; and (2) directs the ordinance be 
placed on the next city council agenda for a 2nd reading. Second by Cook. Motion passed 4-1 with Kind 
voting nay on a roll call vote. 

 
BB. Discuss: Excelsior Blvd Driveway 
 

The consensus of the council is that the driveway is grandfathered. 
 
C. Discuss: Met Council’s Comments re: Greenwood’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan and  

Consider Res 15-20 Adopting the City of Greenwood 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
 

Motion by Kind that the city council (1) directs the following update(s) be made to the city’s 2040 
Comprehensive Plan: add water section language as discussed by the council; and (2) approves 
resolution 15-20. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 

 
D. Discuss: Potential Amendments to Small Cell Wireless Ordinance 
 

The consensus of the city council was that the council is okay with Fletcher contacting the League of MN 
Cities and the City Attorney to get advice regarding a potential Small Cell Wireless ordinance and report 
back to the city council. 
 

8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. None 
 
9.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Refunding Portion of Liquor License Fee to Old Log Due to COVID-19 
 

Motion by Cook that the city council directs the city treasurer to disburse a check in the amount of $2500 
to the Old Log Theatre in recognition of their lost liquor revenue due to the governor's order to close 
restaurants and performing arts venues due to COVID-19. Second by Kind. Motion passed 4-0-1 on a roll 
call vote with Fletcher abstaining. 

 
B. Consider: Installing Winter Access by St. Alban’s Bay Docks 

 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council authorizes public works to repair the winter damage to the rip-rap 
at the St. Alban’s Bay docks. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 

 
 



05-06-20 Greenwood City Council Meeting  |  Page 3 of 3 

10.  OTHER BUSINESS  
 

A.  None 
 

11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Conrad: Planning Commission 
 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org.  
 
B. Cook: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, Public Works Committee, St. Alban's Lake Improvement District 

 

No report, since Cook was not at the meeting. 
 

C. Fletcher: LMCC, Fire, Administrative Committee, Metro Cities, League of MN Cities 
 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

D. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Public Works Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
 

Motion by Fletcher to authorize the mayor to deliver a framed certificate honoring the Old Log’s 80th 
Anniversary along with the liquor license reimbursement check. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 5-0 on 
a roll call vote. 
 
Motion by Kind to authorize Cook and Conrad to tag trees at the city park for removal. Second by Cook. 
Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 

 
E. Roy: Minnetonka Community Education 

 

No council action taken. View report at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Roy to adjourn the meeting at 10:15pm. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting which provides a 
verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing at lmcc-tv.org for 1 year.  



05-13-20 Greenwood City Council & Planning Commission Joint Worksession Minutes   |   Page 1 of 1 

 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council &  
Planning Commission Joint Worksession  
 

Wednesday, May 13, 2020 
Held Via Zoom Video-Conferencing Technology Due to COVID-19   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 8:53pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Kristi Conrad, Tom Fletcher, Rob Roy; 
 Planning Commissioners Julie Getchell, Kelsey Nelson, David Steingas 
Members Absent: Councilman Bill Cook, Planning Commissioner Pat Lucking 
Staff Members Present: City Administrator Pat Smith 

 

Motion by Conrad to approve the agenda. Second by Roy. Motion passed 7-0. 
  
2.   INTRODUCTIONS 
 

 Everyone introduced themselves, how long they have been serving in their role on the planning commission and city 
council, and what motivated them to serve. 

 
3.   REVIEW MINI-TRAINING DOCUMENTS 

 

Quick Reference Sheet – The group reviewed the document which covers Conflicts of Interest, Open Meeting Law, 
Closed Meetings, Meeting Notifications, Public Hearings, Data Practices, Legal Advice. 
 

Excerpts from the League of Minnesota Cities Zoning Guide for Cities – The group reviewed the document which 
covers the Comp Plan, Zoning, Regulatory Taking, Variances, Conditional Use Permits. 
 

Ethics Policy / Code of Conduct – The group discussed the policy and had no questions or concerns.  
 

4. OPEN DISCUSSION 
 

 Topics included Deephaven not providing planning and zoning or public works services beginning 01.01.21,  
 potential development and general maintenance of Georgetown Manor, potential pervious pavers ordinance  
 (look at Minnetonka, Wayzata, Edina), and potentially cancelling the July 4th parade due to COVID-19 (we don’t want 

to make decision too soon, so we will publish the date when the a go / no-go decision will be posted on the website), 
follow up with Kent Carlson regarding landscaping plans. 

     
5.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Kind to adjourn the meeting at 9:44pm. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 7-0. 
 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting / planning commission meeting minutes.  



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date:  2/28/174/30/20

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount
x237 Bridgewater Bank 11/08/18 18 Month 05/08/20 2.48% 134,926.54$       
x238 Bridgewater Bank 03/08/19 18 Month 09/08/20 2.82% 135,080.74$       
x239 Bridgewater Bank 05/08/19 18 Month 11/08/20 2.48% 134,772.93$       
x240 Bridgewater Bank 09/08/19 18 Month 03/08/21 2.23% 134,299.81$       
x241 Bridgewater Bank 11/08/19 18 Month 05/08/21 1.59% 134,658.18$       
x242 Bridgewater Bank 03/08/20 18 Month 09/08/21 1.84% 135,046.47$       

TOTAL 808,784.67$       
CITY COUNCIL POLICY

05-02-18 Motion by Conrad that the Greenwood city council (1) authorizes the administrative committee to move forward with the 
Bridgewater Bank CD staging concept; and (2) authorizes a maximum of $800,000 to be invested in CDs. Second by Quam. Motion passed 
5-0.

04-03-19 Motion by Fletcher to raise the allowable certificate of deposits balance to $900,000 to allow for interest growth. Second by 
Conrad. Motion passed 4-0.

09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of 25 months with a combined 
maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Alerus Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.

11-02-16 Motion by Fletcher that the city council authorizes an increase from $500,000 to $600,000 for the city's maximum balance of 
certificate of deposit. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0.

10-04-17 Motion by Fletcher that the city council approves the August Certificates of Deposit Report and increases the maximum combined 
balance for Certificates of Deposit from $600,000 to $700,000. Second by Kind. Motion passed 4-0.




�/9Ê"�Ê�, 7""�ÊUÊÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊÊ* \Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ  UÊÊ�\Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 2G 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Consider Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 2021 Budget  
 
Summary: The LMCD board approves the budget with input from the cities, but the cities do not take official action on the 
budget. The budget is certified to the state by July 1 each year.  
 
Greenwood's share of the LMCD budget is proposed to increase from 7,077 in 2020 to $7,335 in the 2021 budget.  
This represents a 3.64% increase for Greenwood.  
 
If the council wishes to have a discussion regarding the LMCD budget, this item needs to be removed from the consent 
agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda Motion:  

 
I move that the Greenwood city council (1) expresses support for the 2021 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District budget 
as proposed; and (2) directs that a copy of this motion be sent to the LMCD executive director.		



 

www.lmcd.org • lmcd@lmcd.org 

To preserve and enhance the “Lake Minnetonka experience” 

 

 

 

DATE: May XX, 2020 

 

TO:  LMCD Member City Managers/Administrators & Mayors  
 

FROM: Gregg Thomas, Chair 

Bill Cook, Treasurer 

Denny Newell, Board Member  

Vickie Schleuning, Executive Director 

 

CC: LMCD Board Members 
 

SUBJECT: Preliminary 2021 LMCD Budget 

 

 

A copy of the preliminary 2021 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Budget is 

enclosed.  You are invited to provide comments.  

 

By State statute, the allocation of levy to the 14 member cities is based on their percentage of the 

total net tax capacity, with no city paying greater than 20% of the overall levy. The LMCD 

Board performed a detailed analysis of our budget, resulting in projected expenses and revenues 

for 2021. An increase of 3.75% in our budget is anticipated, with a city levy increase of 1.76%. 

The city levy amount is less than the maximum levy allowed by state law. Each cities’ 

percentage of levy increase varies in relation to taxable market values (as required by statute). 

Because some cities experience greater yearly gains in Total Taxable Market Value, the 

distribution of levy also changes.  

 

One objective during budget preparation was to ensure a balanced budget. Many factors were 

considered to achieve this goal, such as increasing revenue and decreasing costs. Although 

revenues over the past few years have decreased primarily due to loss of grants and 

unpredictable fines, the LMCD, in partnership with stakeholders and volunteers, continues to 

provide essential services to enhance the Lake Minnetonka experience, including creating a Lake 

Vegetation and AIS Master Plan, offering boater safety education, reorganizing our Code of 

Ordinances so they are easier to understand and implement, and continuing to promote and 

ensure safety on the Lake.  

 

Because many agency budgets are considered on a calendar year basis, some budget information 

was not available during this budget preparation. Therefore, while the LMCD continues to 

review all aspects of our budget, the preliminary budget is based on historical analysis and 

projections.  

 

 



LMCD Member Cities- Preliminary 2021 Budget 

May XX, 2020 

Page 2 of 6

 

 

A chart is included that shows the historical LMCD budget and city levy amounts from 2009 to 

Preliminary 2021 Budget. This chart indicates minimal changes over the years to the LMCD 

budget and city levy. The following is a highlight of the Preliminary 2021 LMCD Budget. 

 

Budget Highlights 

• Service Fees. Increase of service fees of $10,000 (9.09%) due to high number in recent 

years and additional compensation.   

• Municipal Levy. Increase of $6,500 (1.76%) total, reflecting adjustments for other 

anticipated revenues.   

• Continue High Target for Save the Lake Fund. Maintain current levels target for 

contributions for value added activities through the Save the Lake Fund for specific 

initiatives. 

• Court Fines. Maintain current level of projected court fines.   

• Legal Fees. Decrease of $10,000 (11.8%) due to anticipated reduction in applications and 

completion of recodification. 

• AIS Management. Transitioning from an in-house harvesting program to a more 

proactive AIS management system. A decrease of personnel costs reflects this shift. 

• Office Supplies. Decrease of $3,500 (5.51%) in office supplies due to some gained 

efficiencies and engagement activities. 

. 

Please refer to the 2020 Budget Summary, indicating the history of the revenues and expenses 

from 2015 to the Preliminary 2021 Budget. In addition, the City Levy Share chart shows the 

distribution of city levy based on the Preliminary 2021 Budget. 

 

The LMCD would appreciate your input. We hope you can attend the online informational 

session scheduled for Thursday, June 4, 2020, at 11 a.m. <Add Zoom Info>  Please contact 

Executive Director Vickie Schleuning or your member city representative if you would like to 

discuss the Preliminary 2021 LMCD Budget or to review LMCD activities and projects. Review 

and approval of the budget by the LMCD Board is scheduled for the June 10, 2020 meeting.   

 

ATTACHMENTS 

I. Budget and Levy Comparison 2009 Through Preliminary 2021 

II. 2021 All Funds Budget Summary 

III. City Levy Share

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCD Member Cities- Preliminary 2021 Budget 

May XX, 2020 

Page 3 of 6

 

 

 

 

I. Budget and Levy Comparison 2009 Through Preliminary 2021 

Since 2009, the LMCD budget has been variable with minimal increases. The 2021 

proposed levy is $375,000; the maximum levy by State law is $638,910. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Budget & Levy Comparison 2009 to Proposed 2021

Levy Approved Budget



LMCD Member Cities- Preliminary 2021 Budget 

May XX, 2020 

Page 4 of 6

2015 

Actual

2016 

Actual

2017 

Actual

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Budget  

Preliminary

2021  

% Change

REVENUES

1 Admin Municipal Dues 247,992$    235,866$    253,456$    271,269$    287,610$    286,500$      300,000$    4.71%

2 AIS Municipal Dues 94,500$   70,999$   66,795$   75,534$   81,170$   82,000$   75,000$   -8.54%

3 Grants and rebates 54,000$   14,015$   20,995$   28,830$   20,000$   2,000$   -$   -100.00%

4 Interest and other 4,455$   3,793$   1,158$   3,706$   12,153$   3,000$   8,000$   166.67%

5 Licenses and Permits 107,510$   112,979$   118,149$   115,590$   123,402$   110,000$    120,000$   9.09%

6 Court Fines 33,974$   35,598$   80,908$   42,967$   40,344$   45,000$   45,000$   0.00%

7 Donations 50,757$   21,425$   29,978$   35,877$   29,715$   45,000$   40,000$   -11.11%

8 Transfers In -$   -$   -$   -$   -$    -$   7,000$   -

TOTAL REVENUES 593,188$    494,675$    571,439$    573,773$    594,394$    573,500$     595,000$    3.75%

EXPENSES

9 Personnel Services 281,849$    296,900$    235,542$    259,300$    260,502$    325,000$      300,000$    -7.69%

10 Office and Supplies 53,533$   51,804$   57,613$   48,720$   55,851$   63,500$   60,000$   -5.51%

11 Legal 90,651$   98,449$   97,268$   75,500$   74,592$   75,000$   70,000$   -6.67%

12 Admin Professional Services 28,768$   16,509$   20,582$   20,700$   32,350$   20,000$   25,000$   25.00%

13 AIS Prevention Program (Inspections and Master Plan) 37,571$   25,148$   31,663$   10,000$   118,238$   -- 75,000$   -

14 AIS Management (harvesting, equipment and repair) 48,251$   56,103$   50,969$   50,000$   8,799$   50,000$   5,000$   -90.00%

15 Equipment Replacement 786$   744$   1,220$   -$   -$   -

16 STL Grants and Programs 67,233$   42,800$   35,307$   34,625$   38,614$   40,000$   40,000$   0.00%

17 Budget Amendment

18 Communications 20,000$   -

18 Transfers Out 38,192$   -$   15,000$   -$   

19 Other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 646,834$    588,457$    545,164$   498,845$   588,947$    573,500$     595,000$    3.75%

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) (53,646)$     (93,782)$     26,275$   74,928$   5,447$   -$    -$   

Reserve Amounts EOY 2017 EOY 2018 EOY 2019

General 168,928$   231,023$   258,429$    

AIS 85,176$   94,815$   79,590$   

Reserve Fund Balance 254,104$    325,838$   338,019$    

Reserve Percentage of Annual Expenses 47% 65% 57%

Equipment Replacement 118,422$    119,167$    125,652$    

Save the Lake 164,133$    164,731$    157,788$    

536,659$    609,736$    621,459$    

 ACTUAL FOR 2015-2019, BUDGET FOR 2020, AND PRELIMINARY 2021

 STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 2020 BUDGET SUMMARY (DRAFT 05/20/2020)

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT (LMCD)

II. 2021 All Funds Budget Summary



 

 

Budget Notes

Line Item Commentary

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

18

Personnel services have been decreased, dependant on workload needs and additional staff hours anticipated to provide services. 

Office and supplies was decreased and also provides resources to produce routine communication mailings and education pieces.

Legal includes both the administrative and prosecution fees. Legal fees are anticipated to decline due to conclusion of the recodification process in 2020. 

Professional Services primarily includes the cost of producing and broadcasting the Board Meeting, Audit fees, and IT consulting fees. 

AIS Prevention Program includes the activities related to current and long-term projects for the prevention of AIS, inspection activities, and similar. Grants may be received and passed 

through to other service providers.

Harvesting Program is the removal and disposal of aquatic invasive vegetation such as CLP and EWM from navigation areas. This budget includes costs of abating problematic navigation 

areas through contracted services. It had typically included the operation of a two harvesters and/or a combination of three onlake machines during the season. 

STL are the Save the Lake Grants that are funded from contributions and donations received from the STL program. STL programs fund the ongoing Solar Light Program, Boater Safety 

Training Classes, public safety and emergency services, and other lake protection and safety programs.

Funds support communications and legislation relations activities for lake conservation and safety including consulting fees. 

This Budget presentation is a presentation of each first level budget line item for all three funds. Further definition of the contents of each line item and its specific fund breakdown historical 

data are available on the All Funds Breakdown prepared in our Audit Process and the Profit & Loss Statements. 

Administration dues were increased to reflect the higher annual costs and when coupled with the AIS dues generate a 1.8% increase in total dues.

See #1 above.

Grants are often pass through items that show up in equal amounts in the income and expense line, and so may not included in the budget. Rebates are included in typical amounts.

Interest and other income is increased to reflect changes in the market and to better identify those income amounts within the budget framework.

License and Permit fees are expected to increase based on the higher number of project applications processed in recent years.

Court fines are also expected to remain at similar levels. 

Donations are anticipated to increase slightly.

Transfers in are from the reserve funds if shown.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCD Member Cities- Preliminary 2020 Budget 

May XX, 2020 

Page 6 of 6 

 
 

 

III. City Levy Share 

City

2010  U.S. 

Census 

Population 

Data

2019 Estimated 

Market Value

2019 Net Tax 

Capacity

% of Total 

Net Tax 

Capacity 

(Note 1)

Share of 

Admin. 

Levy in 

2021

Share of AIS 

Levy in 2021

Share of 

Total Levy 

in 2021

Share of 

Total Levy 

in 2020

Change in 

Total Levy 

from 2020

% Change 

from 2020

DEEPHAVEN 3,642 1,378,655,900$    15,768,253$    5.1% $20,449 $5,112 $25,561 $25,798 -$237 -0.92%

EXCELSIOR 2,188 563,728,900$       7,128,340$      2.3% $9,244 $2,311 $11,555 $10,996 $559 5.09%

GREENWOOD 688 383,967,100$       4,524,938$      1.5% $5,868 $1,467 $7,335 $7,077 $258 3.64%

MINNETONKA 49,734 10,227,884,400$  125,045,402$  40.3% $60,000 $15,000 $75,000 $73,700 $1,300 1.76%

MTKA BEACH 539 366,110,800$       4,335,414$      1.4% $5,622 $1,406 $7,028 $7,009 $19 0.28%

MINNETRISTA 6,384 1,828,446,800$    19,628,686$    6.3% $25,455 $6,364 $31,819 $31,279 $540 1.73%

MOUND 9,052 1,424,716,300$    14,896,070$    4.8% $19,318 $4,829 $24,147 $23,620 $527 2.23%

ORONO 7,437 3,193,769,900$    36,704,692$    11.8% $47,600 $11,900 $59,500 $58,846 $654 1.11%

SHOREWOOD 7,307 1,838,064,900$    20,348,054$    6.6% $26,388 $6,597 $32,985 $33,119 -$134 -0.40%

SPRING PARK 1,669 309,279,100$       3,709,461$      1.2% $4,811 $1,203 $6,013 $6,007 $6 0.10%

TONKA BAY 1,475 609,862,400$       6,982,370$      2.3% $9,055 $2,264 $11,319 $11,422 -$104 -0.91%

VICTORIA 7,345 1,733,474,600$    18,175,274$    5.9% $23,570 $5,893 $29,463 $27,066 $2,397 8.86%

WAYZATA 3,688 2,225,685,300$    29,126,139$    9.4% $37,772 $9,443 $47,215 $46,201 $1,014 2.19%

WOODLAND 437 317,608,600$       3,737,895$      1.2% $4,847 $1,212 $6,059 $6,359 -$299 -4.71%

101,585 26,401,255,000$  310,110,988$  100.0% $300,000 $75,000 $375,000 $368,500 $6,500 1.76%

Maximum Levy Per MN statute 103B.635 (Total Taxable Market Value * 0.00242%):    $638,910

(Note 1) Per MN statute 103B.631, no city may pay more than 20% of the total levy.  The City of Minnetonka would pay a constant 20% of any amounts to be levied. 

Remaining cities factor for determining levy amounts is computed as: (City Net Tax Capacity / ( Total Net Tax Capacity - Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity ) ) * 80%

Total Net Tax Capacity 310,110,988

    less Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity (125,045,402)

Net Tax Capacity for remaining 13 cities 185,065,586

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2021 BUDGET AND LEVY

(Preliminary)




�/9Ê"�Ê�, 7""�ÊUÊÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊÊ* \Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ  UÊÊ�\Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 2H 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Pat Smith 

 
 
Agenda Item: Consider: Request of Marcia Fetters to combine two adjacent lots (21170 and 21200 Minnetonka 
Boulevard) into one lot.  

Summary: Marcia Fetters is the owner of two adjacent lots located at 21170 and 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard (PID Nos. 
26-117-23-13-0016 and 26-117-23-13-0017). The vacant lot at 21170 Minnetonka is 7,518 square feet in size and is 
considered not buildable because of common ownership with the adjacent lot at 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard. The vacant 
lot at 21170 is approximately 50 feet wide while the minimum lot width for new lots is 75 feet.  

City Role in Lot Combination: Lot combinations are beyond the scope of the City’s subdivision ordinance. This is not 
simply due to the fact that lot combinations are not mentioned in the City’s subdivision ordinance, but also from the fact 
that state law has not authorized city oversight into lot combinations. Since state law does not give municipal oversite into 
lot combinations, public hearings and public notifications are not required. While state law may not give cities authority 
over lot combinations, it is the policy of Hennepin County to require notification from the city in which the parcels are 
located. The most appropriate method to memorialize such a transaction is through a resolution. Attached to this 
memorandum is Resolution No____ acknowledging the lot combination.  

Consent Agenda Motion for Acknowledgement: I move the council adopts resolution 16-20 that acknowledges the lot 
combination request by Marcia Fetters to combine the two lots (21170 and 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard) into one lot. 

 



Lot Combination

03/20/2015 - 06/09/2015



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO 16-20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
 
IN RE: The lot combination of real property located at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID 

No. 26-117-23-13-0016) and 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-13-
0017) 

 
WHEREAS, Marcia Fetters is the owner of real property located at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN 

(PID No. 26-117-23-13-0016) and 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-
13-0017); and 

 
WHEREAS, Marcia Fetters desires to combine the two adjacent lots into one lot under the single address at 21200 

Minnetonka Boulevard; and  
 
WHEREAS, the property at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard is currently a vacant lot; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hennepin County requires notification from the City of Greenwood of the proposed lot combination. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. The real property located at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-13-0016) is a 
single lot of record located within the R-1A zoning district. 

2. The real property located at 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-13-0017) is a 
single lot of record located within the R-1A zoning district.  

3. The combined square footage of the properties will continue to be zoning code compliant with the minimum lot 
standards for an R-1A property.  

4. That the properties are adjacent to each other and are not bisected by public right-of-way.  
5. The property at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard is currently a vacant lot; and therefore, the combined properties will 

only host one single-family dwelling unit.  
6. Any proposed future dwelling units, structures, and improvements will be required to comply with the City of 

Greenwood Code of Ordinances.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota does hereby make 
the following:  
 
That Marcia Fetters intends to combine the lots at 21170 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-13-
0016) and 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, MN (PID No. 26-117-23-13-0017) and has requested the City of 
Greenwood notify Hennepin County of said combination.  
 
ADOPTED THIS 3rd DAY OF JUNE, 2020 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA. 
 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 




�/9Ê"�Ê�, 7""�ÊUÊÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊÊ* \Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ  UÊÊ�\Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 4A 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Dave Martini, 2020 Engineering Projects  
 
Summary: City Engineer Dave Martini will attend the city council meeting to discuss potential 2020 engineering projects.  
 
Below are city fund balances as of 03-31-20 that may be used for any city purpose: 

 $345,571 Sewer Enterprise Fund (interfund transfer OUT code 602-43200-720, capital outlay code  
  602-43200-530, engineering code 602-43200-303)  
 $35,808 Stormwater Special Revenue Fund (interfund transfer OUT code 502-43200-720, interfund transfer IN  
  code 502-34405, capital outlay code 502-43200-530, engineering code 502-43200-303) 
 $191,244 Bridge Capital Project Fund (general fund transfer OUT to bridge fund code 101-49000-500,  
  interfund transfer IN code 403-39200, capital outlay 403-45100-530, engineering code 403-45100-303) 
 $159,068 Road Improvement Fund – Includes $124,000 from 2020 general fund budget to be transferred to  
  the road improvement fund plus the $35,068 current road improvement fund balance  
  (general fund transfer OUT to road fund code 101-43200-500, interfund transfer IN code 404-36230,  
  capital outlay 404-45100-100, engineering code 404-45100-303) 
 $4,000 2020 Contingency Budget (general fund code 101-49000-439) 
 
In addition, below is the General Fund Reserve balance as of 12-31-19. Reserve funds may be used for any city purpose: 
 
 $505,443 General Fund Reserves (interfund transfer OUT code 101-43200-500) – This number is approximately  
  65.01% of operating expenditures. Goal is 35-50%. 
   
County Aid to Municipalities: In 1957, Hennepin County established a County Aid to Municipalities (CAM) program to 
provide financial assistance for roadways and bridges to cities with populations under 5,000. Typically, the funding is 
between $1,000 and $3,000 per year. The city must submit a project approval form to receive the funds. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the city council authorizes the city engineer to secure bids for the following projects: 
______________________ 

 
2. I move the city council authorizes the city engineer to submit the project approval form to receive County Aid to 

Municipalities (CAM) program money for 2020.  
 

3. Do nothing or other motion ??? 
 




�/9Ê"�Ê�, 7""�ÊUÊÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊÊ* \Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ  UÊÊ�\Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 4Aa 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Councilman Bill Cook and Brian Simmons: Overview of Inflow / Infiltration in Greenwood 

Summary: At the 06-03-20 city council meeting, Councilman Bill Cook and Brian Simmons will share an overview 
of Inflow / Infiltration in Greenwood. 

Council Action: No action required.  
 



ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Res 07-20, Findings for CUP Request, Cory and Denae Martilla, 21750 Byron Circle 
 

Background:	Notice of the public hearing was published in Finance & Commerce on 12-21-19. The planning commission 
held a public hearing at their 01-09-20 meeting. The planning commission considered public comment, applicant’s 
comments, application materials, and staff reports when making their recommendation (see planning commission action 
below). The city council must incorporate city code sections1150.20 CUP criteria and 1155.20 variance criteria as well as 
any conditions in the findings. 
 

01-09-20 Planning Commission Action: The planning commission held a public hearing at their 01-09-20 meeting. The 
planning commission recommended denial of the variance and conditional use permit requests based on the 
recommendation and findings of staff. 
 

02-05-20 City Council Action: Based on input from the planning commission, the applicant submitted design revisions 
on 1-24-20. The revised drawings appeared to remove the variance request items from the proposal. In the opinion of 
staff, the submitted revisions were not suitable for decision-making purposes but may be appropriate for discussion 
purposes in order to provide the applicant input. At the 02-02-20 meeting, the city council approved the following motion: 

 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional 
days to process the variance and conditional use permit application of Cory and Denae Martilla, 21750 Byron 
Circle, by mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of Mailing in the property file. The written notice shall 
state the reason for the extension is to allow the applicant time to bring a more refined revised plan to the 
planning commission for their review and recommendation. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 

02-12-20 Planning Commission Action: The planning commission recommended approval of the revised landscaping 
proposal as submitted on a 3-0 vote. The commission didn’t object to the 2-foot retaining wall that encroaches into the 50-
foot setback as the plan would remove all other retaining walls within the setback area. In addition, the 2:1 slope that is 
provided by the installation of the retaining walls allows for native plantings and would help to prevent erosion of the 
hillside. See the 02-12-20 planning commission minutes in the FYI section of the packet for the discussion. 
 

At the 03-04-20 City Council Meeting, the council reviewed the revised plans, discussed the planning commission's 
recommendation, and discussed the plans with the applicant. During the discussion, the council expressed concern 
regarding the tall retaining wall facing the neighbor's property and determined that the proposed underground storage unit 
was a 2nd accessory structure (only 1 accessory structure is allowed on a property). At the meeting, the applicant also 
submitted a handwritten withdrawal of the variance request. The council approved the following motion ... 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council continues action on the findings resolutions for the variance and 
conditional use permit applications of Cory and Denae Martilla, 21750 Byron Circle, to the 04-01-20 council 
meeting to give the applicant time to revise plans based on the council discussion. Second by Conrad. 
Motion passed 3-0. 

 

On 03-30-20, the applicant submitted a written withdrawal of the variance requests, a request to extend action 
until 05-17-20, and a request to be placed on the 05-06-20 council agenda. 
 

At the 05-06-20 City Council Meeting, the council approved the following motion with the direction that the applicants 
can only have one accessory structure. 
 

Motion by Kind to continue action to the 06.03.20 could meeting unless the council does not receive a written 
extension from the applicant, in which case the city council will hold a special meeting to take action. Second 
by Cook. Motion passed 5-0 on a roll call vote.  

 

The applicants provided a written extension to the 06-03-20 council meeting. They plan to send updated information 
prior to the 06-03-20 council meeting. If staff receives the information, it will be emailed to the city council. The 
resolution includes this language ... “The project must be completed according to the specifications and design 
requirements in the grading plan, planting plan, and shoreland renderings presented at the June 3, 2020 council 
meeting.” For the council's reference, attached are the items from the 05-06-20 council meeting. 

 

 
 
 
 



ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Key Dates: 
Application Complete:   December 19, 2019 
Notice of Public Hearing Published: December 21, 2019 
Planning Commission Public Hearing: January 9, 2020 
City Council Discussion:   February 5, 2020 
2nd Planning Commission Review: February 12, 2020 
60-Day Deadline:   February 17, 2020 
City Council Discussion:   March 4, 2020 
Applicant Submitted Written Request  
to Extend Deadline to May 17, 2020: March 30, 2020 
Original 120-Day Deadline:  April 17, 2020 
City Council Discussion:   May 6, 2020 
Applicant Submitted Written Request  
to Extend Deadline to June 3, 2020: May 7, 2020 
Deadline Extended by Applicant: June 3, 2020 
 
Council Action: The applicant has submitted a written request to extend the action deadline to 06-03-20. The council 
must take action by 06-03-20 unless the applicant grants an extension in writing. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council (1) adopts resolution 07-20 laying out the findings of fact as written / as revised per the council 
discussion APPROVING the conditional use permit requests of Cory and Denae Martilla, 21750 Byron Circle, to install 
retaining walls within the lake yard setback and to regrade the lake yard area; and (2) directs the city clerk to mail a 
copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the 
property file.  

 

2. I move the city council directs staff to draft FINDINGS FOR DENIAL for the conditional use permit requests of Cory 
and Denae Martilla, 21750 Byron Circle, to be considered by the city council at __ pm on  _______, 2020. 
 

3. Other motion ??? 
 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
 





























Greenwood Resolution 07-20   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

 
RESOLUTION 07-20 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  
CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
 

 

APPROVING 
 

the application of Cory and Denae Martilla for the property at 21750 Byron Circle for a conditional use permit 
under Greenwood ordinance code sections 1140.19(3), 1176.04(7), and 1150.20 to permit grading or site / lot 
topography alterations that increase or decrease the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by 
more than 1 foot in a 300 square foot area and the installation of retaining walls within the lake yard setback. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Applicants Cory and Denae Martilla (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) is the owner of property commonly known as 
21750 Byron Circle, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-34-0055) being real property located in Hennepin 
County, Minnesota and legally described below; and 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant proposes to regrade the property and install retaining walls within the lake yard setback; and 
 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 

WHEREAS, there was an opportunity for the public to comment in writing and in person at the public hearing held by the 
planning commission on January 9, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, no public comments were submitted in writing or in person; and 
 

WHEREAS, the city council received the staff report and the recommendation of the planning commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, the city council considered the application and the comments of the applicant. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 



Greenwood Resolution 07-20   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 21750 Byron Circle, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-34-0055) is a 
single-family lot of record located within the R-1 district. 

 

2. The applicant is proposing to alter site / lot topography that increases or decreases the average grade (existing 
compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in a 300 square foot area in conjunction with a lake yard 
landscaping project. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code 1140.19(3), the increase or decrease the average grade 
(existing compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in any 300 square foot area requires a conditional use 
permit. 

 

3.  Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code 1176.04, subd. 7, retaining walls shall not be placed within the shore setback 
zone without a conditional use permit. Applicant proposes the installation of a 2-foot high retaining wall within the 
shore setback. 

 

4. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20, subd. 3, the city council may impose such conditions and 
safeguards upon the property benefitted by a CUP as may be necessary to maintain compatibility with other 
properties in the neighborhood.   

 

5. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20, subd 1, the planning commission shall make findings and 
recommendations to the city council. The council may then authorize a conditional use by resolution. 

 

6. The planning commission discussed the CUP request and on a 3-0 vote recommended the council approves the CUP 
requests based on the following findings pursuant to the CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20 
subd 1: 

  

(a) The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified for the R-1 zoning district. 
(b) The use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the R-1 zoning district. 
(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city since the impacts from regrading steep slope areas on the property may improve the 
stability of the bluffs and steep slopes of this property and / or adjacent properties. The plan removes the rotting 
existing retaining walls within the lake setback area. In addition, the 2:1 slope in the plan will allow for plantings to 
help prevent erosion of the hillside. 

(d) The proposed use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan, particularly the objective of meeting or 
exceeding the Department of Natural Resources shoreline standards to protect the shoreland from undue 
hardcover and protecting the shore impact zone from adverse consequences of development. 

(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of 
sections 1125.05(3)(c) and 1150.20 necessary for the granting of a CUP.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments that the city of Greenwood does hereby APPROVES the Conditional Use Permit for the subject 
property to alter site / lot topography that increases or decreases the average grade (existing compared to final 
conditions) by more than 1 foot in a 300 square foot area and to place a retaining wall within the shore setback zone, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the grading plan, planting 
plan, and shoreland renderings presented at the June 3, 2020 council meeting. 



Greenwood Resolution 07-20   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

(b) The project must comply with the city engineer's requirements: 
I. Perimeter erosion control measures must be installed and inspected by the city prior to any other work. A 

minimum of 24-hours notice is required prior to inspection. 
II. Retaining walls 4 feet or greater in height must be designed by a licensed Professional Engineer. Wall plans must 

be submitted for review and approval prior to construction. 
III. Perimeter control measures must be installed for the bluff along the south side of the lot to prevent any 

disturbance of this area. 
IV. Control measures must be taken to prevent of erosion on steep slopes. 
V. Clear-cutting of natural vegetation is prohibited. 
VI. Vegetation must be restored to preserve screening of structures, vehicles, and other facilities as viewed from the 

surface of Lake Minnetonka. 
VII. Clear drive lanes must be maintained on Byron Circle at all times. 
VIII. A Minnehaha Creek Wateshed District permit must be obtained and a copy of the permit must be provided to the 

city before the project may commence. 
(c) A certified copy of this resolution must be filed with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and proof of filing provided 

to the city before the project may commence. 
 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2020 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the 
Board of Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 

 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 

 



ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: 1st Reading: Ord 299, Amending Section 1140.10 Subd 2(C) Lake Setbacks for Accessory 
Structures; Res 11-20, Summary of Ord 299 for Publication 
 

Summary: At the 01-02-19 city council meeting, discussed potential changes to the city code regarding Lake Setbacks for 
Accessory Structures. The council was not unanimous on the proposed changes, but directed that the proposed changes 
be sent to the planning commission for their review and recommendation. 
 

Planning Commission Action: The planning commission reviewed the proposed changes at their 02-12-20 meeting and 
took the following action ... 
 

Motion by Lucking to recommend approval of the proposed ordinance subject to removing “crushed or 
smooth rock, sand” from the definition of deck and patio. Second by Steingas. Motion carried 2-1. Nelson 
voted nay stating that she prefers to remove all of the new verbiage under the definition of deck and patio.    

 

At the 03-04-20 City Council Meeting, the council discussed the planning commission's recommendation. Kind 
expressed concerns regarding the ordinance – especially the retaining wall restriction. Fletcher suggested that he and 
Kind work on revisions to the ordinance. The council approved the following motion ... 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city continues action on ordinance 299 to allow time to revise the ordinance 
based on the city council’s discussion. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 3-0. 

 

At the 04-01-20 City Council Meeting, the council continued action to the 05-06-20 council meeting to give Cook an 
opportunity to weigh in. 
 

At the 05-06-20 City Council Meeting, the council approved the following motion ... 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 299 amending section 
1140.10 subd 2(C) Lake Setbacks for Accessory Structures as amended; and (2) directs the ordinance be 
placed on the next city council agenda for a 2nd reading. Second by Cook. Motion passed 4-1 with Kind 
voting nay on a roll call vote. 

 

At the 06-03-20 City Council Meeting, the council will consider the 2nd reading of the ordinance. 
 

Timeline: 
01-02-20  The city council discussed the proposed ordinance and approved sending it to the planning commission. 
02-12-20 The planning commission reviewed the ordinance and made a recommendation. 
03-04-20 The city council discussed the proposed ordinance and continued action to the 04-01-20 meeting. 
04-01-20  The city council continued action to the 05-06-20 council meeting. 
05-06-20  City council approved the 1st reading of the ordinance. 
06-03-20 City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
06-04-20 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
06-11-20 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 

Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 299 amending section 1140.10 subd 2(C) Lake 
Setbacks for Accessory Structures as written / as amended; (2) waives the 2nd reading; (3) approves resolution 
11-20 a summary of ordinance 299; and (4) directs staff to submit resolution 11-20 to the city’s official newspaper 
for publication. 

 

2. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 299 amending section 1140.10 subd 2(C) Lake 
Setbacks for Accessory Structures as written / as amended; and (2) directs the ordinance be placed on the next 
city council agenda for a 2nd reading. 
 

3. Do nothing (maintain current ordinance) or other motion ??? 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading.  
There may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. The 2nd reading may be waived by a unanimous vote of city council members present at the 
meeting. In order to publish an ordinance by title and summary the ordinance must be approved by a 4/5ths vote. Ordinances go into effect once they 
are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any 
changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11.  
 



03-15-20 Greenwood Ordinance 299   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 299 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 1102 DEFINITIONS AND  
1140.10 SUBD. 2(C) REGARDING ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LAKE SETBACKS 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code Section 1102 definitions of “Deck,” “Impervious Surface,” and “Patio, Slab” are amended to 
read as follows: 
 

 “Deck means an unenclosed roofless horizontal surface constructed of materials (including, but not limited to, concrete, 
flagstones, crushed rock, smooth rock, bricks, pavers, or boards) greater than 2 square feet in area or greater than 10 
square feet in a 50 square foot area of a lot. Crushed rock or smooth rock in a planting bed is not a deck.  
 

(THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “PATIO, SLAB” AND “DECK”)” 
 

 “Impervious Surface means a surface that either prevents or retards the passage of rainwater through it or causes water 
to run off the surface in greater quantities and at an increased rate of flow than prior to development. Impervious surfaces 
shall include, but are not limited to, all buildings, driveways, and parking areas (though they be paved or MnDOT class 5 
sand and gravel mix), pavers, tennis courts, sidewalks, walkways, horizontal area of retaining walls, patios, boardwalk 
decks, swimming pools, and plastic landscaping sheets which are not porous.” 
 

 “Patio, Slab means an unenclosed roofless horizontal surface constructed of materials (including, but not limited to, 
concrete, flagstones, crushed rock, smooth rock, bricks, pavers, or boards) greater than 2 square feet in area or greater 
than 10 square feet in a 50 square foot area of a lot. Crushed rock or smooth rock in a planting bed is not a patio.  
 

(THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “PATIO, SLAB” AND “DECK”)” 
 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code Section 1102 definitions is amended to include the following definition for “Landscaping 
Retaining Wall”: 
 

 “Retaining Wall, Engineered means a wall used for supporting different ground elevations that requires engineered 
design per the state building code.” 
 
SECTION 3. 
Greenwood ordinance code Section 1140.10 is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1140.10. Setbacks and General Regulations for Accessory Structures and Uses (Primary and 
Secondary).  
 

Subd. 1. Purpose. To preserve (1) the public safety and welfare, (2) the enjoyment of property, (3) property values, and 
(4) to prevent adverse impacts arising from overcrowding or competing uses associated with the placement of accessory 
structures and uses, the city has determined that the below setbacks and regulations are necessary to protect the public 
welfare of the city.  
 

Subd. 2. Setback Standards for Accessory Structures and Uses (Primary and Secondary).  
 

A. Unobstructed Green Space Perimeter Requirement. All lots shall establish and maintain a 2-foot wide green space 
perimeter of open yard space along all lot lines (boundary lines) free of all accessory structures and uses (primary and 
secondary), subject only to (a) the right angle traversing of same by driveway, parking pad, or sidewalk, (b) code 
compliant authorized fences, and (c) code compliant authorized lakeside improvements.  

 

B. Primary Accessory Structures and Uses Setback Minimums - Residential Zones. Subject to the Unobstructed Green 
Space Perimeter Requirement (subd. 2A above), the minimum yard setback for all primary accessory structures / 
uses in residential zones R-1A, R-1B, R-1C, and R-2, inclusive, (as same are defined in this code including sections 
1120, 1122, 1123, and 1125), are as follows: 

 

 

Front  
Yard  
Setback 

Side  
Yard  
Setback 

Exterior  
Side Yard 
Setback 
(Corner 
Lot) 

Rear  
Yard  
Setback 

Lakeside  
Yard  
Setback 



03-15-20 Greenwood Ordinance 299   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

Primary Accessory Structures - Residential Zones  
(see sections 1120.20, 1122.20, 1123.20, 1125.20 for more 
regulations) 

100 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

 
C. Secondary Accessory Structures and Uses Setback Minimums. Subject to the Unobstructed Green Space Perimeter 

Requirement (subd. 2A above), for each of the specific secondary accessory structures / uses identified in the table 
below, the minimum yard setbacks stated therein shall control and supersede the setback minimums for primary 
accessory structures stated in subd. 2B above. See section 1102 for definitions. 

 

 

Front  
Yard  
Setback 

Side  
Yard  
Setback 

Exterior  
Side Yard 
Setback 
(Corner 
Lot) 

Rear  
Yard  
Setback 

Lakeside  
Yard  
Setback 

Driveways, Parking Pads (see section 1140.46) 0 feet  5 feet 0 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Driveway Monument Posts (see subd. 8 below) 2 feet 5 feet 2 feet Not 
allowed 

Not 
allowed 

Fire Pits (built-in or freestanding, less than or equal to 20 sq ft in area) 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 10 feet 
Engineered Retaining Walls that do not have a signed statement 
from an engineer that the wall is necessary to support the primary  
structure on the property.   

0 feet 0 feet 0 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Monument Signs (for commercially-regulated properties 
only, see section 1140.40 subd 8 
(d) for more regulations) 

2 feet 10 feet 2 feet Not 
allowed 

Not 
allowed 

Outdoor Fireplaces, Outdoor Kitchens (built-in or freestanding), 
Fire Pits (greater than 20 sq ft in area) 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Patio, Deck, Slabs (less than 30 inches in height at all points, 
excluding railing, pergola, etc.) 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Patio, Deck, Slabs (30+ inches in height at any point, excluding  
railing, pergola, etc.) 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet  

Pergolas, Arbors, Trellises (see subd 4 below) 20 feet  5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
Sidewalks (see subd. 5 below)  0 feet  5 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 
Sport Courts, Tennis Courts (see subd. 6 below) 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
Swimming Pools, Hot Tubs, Spas – in-ground (see subd. 7 
below) and freestanding 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Miscellaneous Secondary Accessory Structures Not Listed 
Above – with a footprint of 2 sq ft or greater  50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

 

 

Subd. 3. Proximity and Attachment of Primary Accessory Structures to Principal Structures. If a primary accessory 
structure is attached or physically connected to the main principal structure by any means, utility connections excepted, it 
shall be deemed a part of the main principal structure and shall comply in all respects with the requirements of the zoning 
ordinance applicable to the principal structure. No primary accessory structure shall be closer than 5 feet to the principal 
structure. No primary accessory structure may be attached to and / or made a part of the principal structure, if so doing 
would cause the principal structure to become noncompliant with the setbacks applicable to the principal structure. 
 

Subd. 4. Pergolas, Arbors, and Trellises. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. The maximum height 
for a pergola or arbor is 12 feet. The maximum total combined footprint per property for pergolas or arbors located in a 
garden, in a grassy area, or over a sidewalk is 100 square feet. The maximum total combined square foot per property for 
pergolas located over decks or patios that are compliant with the setbacks in subd. 2C above is 400 square feet. Trellises 
may be included as a decorative element to a code compliant fence. 
 

Subd. 5. Sidewalks. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. Sidewalks may exceed 4 feet in only one 
direction. If adjacent to lakeshore, sidewalks must be perpendicular (not parallel) to the shoreline. 
 

Subd. 6. Sport Courts and Tennis Courts. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. A conditional use 
permit is required for all sport courts and tennis courts subject to reasonable conditions for the protection of public safety, 
health, and welfare. 
 

Subd. 7. In-Ground Swimming Pools and In-Ground Spas. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above.  
All equipment related to operation or maintenance of an in-ground pool or in-ground spa must comply with the setbacks. A 
conditional use permit is required for all in-ground pools and in-ground spas subject to reasonable conditions for the 
protection of public safety, health, and welfare. 



03-15-20 Greenwood Ordinance 299   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Subd. 8. Driveway Monument Posts. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. A maximum of 2 posts are 
allowed per driveway entrance (1 post on each side of the driveway). The maximum dimensions for each driveway 
monument post is 3 feet wide, 3 feet deep, 7 feet tall including a light or fineal. 

 
SECTION 4. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2020. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2020 
Second reading: _____, 2020 
Publication: _____, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 11-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
APPROVING PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 299 BY TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 
WHEREAS, on ____, 2020 the city council of the city of Greenwood adopted “Ordinance 299 Amending Greenwood 
Ordinance Code Section 1102 Definitions and 1140.10 Subd. 2(C) Regarding Accessory Structure Lake Setbacks.” 
 
WHEREAS, the city council has prepared a summary of ordinance 299 as follows: 
1. The purpose of this ordinance is to protect and safeguard the health, safety, and welfare of the public by regulating 

the location of accessory structures that affect the natural look of the shoreline and / or cause increased stormwater 
runoff rates and volumes that can lead to erosion and contaminants entering the lake.  

2. The ordinance ... 
• adds “including, but not limited to, concrete, flagstones, crushed rock, smooth rock, bricks, pavers, or boards” to 

the definition of decks, patios and slabs;  
• adds the horizontal area of retaining walls to the definition of impervious surfaces; 
• adds a definition for engineered retaining walls; 
• limits the size of firepits (built-in or freestanding) to 20 square feet if they are located between 10ft and 50ft from 

the lake; 
• prohibits the location of engineered retaining walls within 50 feet of the lake and within 10ft of the rear yard 

property line unless deemed appropriate by a written engineering statement indicating the wall is necessary to 
support the primary structure; 

• prohibits the location of decks, patios, slabs within 50 feet of the lake; and 
• increases the lakeshore setback from 35 to 50 feet for pergolas, arbors, and trellises. 

3. The ordinance applies to any new construction, new alteration, or new improvement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD: 
1. The city council finds that the above title and summary of ordinance 299 clearly informs the public of intent and effect 

of the ordinance. 
2. The city clerk is directed to publish ordinance 299 by title and summary, pursuant to Minnesota statutes, section 

412.191, subdivision 4. 
3. A full copy of the ordinance is available at the Greenwood city office, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 

55331. 
 
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2020. 
 
____ AYES   ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
Attest: Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
First reading: ________, 2020 
Second reading: ________, 2020 
Publication: ________, 2020 
 



 

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Consider Variance Requests, Ranee Jacobus, 5290 Meadville Street 
 
Summary: Ranee Jacobus is requesting a variance to install an air conditioning unit on the south side of her house which 
would encroach into the minimum required setbacks for air conditioning units. 
 
Section 1140.20 of the Zoning Ordinance requires air conditioners and generators be located within five feet of the 
principal structure and five feet from any property line.  

Background: On January 2, 2019, the City Council approved a variance to encroach 4.2 feet into the south side yard 
setback and a variance to encroach 4.1 into the north side yard setback. With the two approved variances, the new house 
is close to completion and is setback 3.9 feet from the north and south property lines, which prohibits the placement of an 
air conditioning unit without getting a variance for the five-foot setback requirement.  

A single-family residence is located north of the subject property, while an office building is located south of the subject 
property. The applicant is proposing to place the air conditioning unit on the south side of the house to be sympathetic to 
the single-family property owner to the north (please see attached site plan). 
 
To keep the air conditioning unit as close to the house as possible, the applicant has selected an air conditioning unit that 
has a small footprint at 37 inches wide and 17 inches deep (please see attached cut sheet). According to the applicant’s 
mechanical contractor, the air conditioning unit will be installed within 8 inches of the house, which will leave 25 inches 
between the unit and the property line (please see attached letter from Tyler Hardin of Ty’s Mechanical). The mechanical 
contractor states that the proposed unit would be serviced from the side and no additional distance is required in front of 
the unit to service it.   
 
When the City Council approved the side yard setback variances in 2019, the proposed survey at that time did not show 
the location of any air conditioning unit. This is not uncommon. The attached survey of 5260 Meadville, which also 
required variances, did not show the location of an air conditioning unit.  
 
Variance Review Criteria 
Minn. Stat § 462.357, subd. 6(2) requires the City’s Board of Appeals and Adjustments evaluating a variance request to 
make the following inquiries:  
 

1) Is the variance in harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance? 
 Staff Comment: The applicant has selected a narrow air conditioning unit to keep the encroachment to a 

minimum and is proposing to place the unit away from the single-family residence to the north. Thus, the 
variance request is minor and remains in harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance.  

 
2) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
 Staff Comment:  The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s Housing Elements Goals and 

Policies which encourage residents to maintain and/or modernize the Greenwood’s housing stock 
 
3) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
 Staff Comment:  Placing an air conditioning unit on the side of a house is typical in Greenwood and is a 

reasonable use of this property.  
 
4) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
 Staff Comment: Yes.  The house was designed, approved and constructed without being able to place an air 

condition unit on any side of the house without the need of a variance.  
  
5) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 Staff Comment: No, the proposal would not alter the essential character of the locality.  Air conditioning units 

are typically placed on the side of houses.  
 
Please note that state statutes have determined that “economic considerations alone” do not create “practical difficulties.”  



 

Planning Commission Action Taken on May 13, 2020: 

Motion by Steingas to recommend approval of a one-foot variance to install the air conditioning unit in front of the house. 
Motion was seconded by Getchell. Motion carried 2/1. Nelson voted nay as the applicant was not in favor of the motion.   

Staff Recommendation for Variance Request: 

Staff recommends approval of the variance request of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for a variance to encroach three feet 
into the south side yard setback in order to install an air conditioning unit for the new house at 5290 Meadville Street, as 
proposed. 

 

Council Action: The City Council must take action by July 21, 2020. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the City Council adopts resolution XX-20 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the variance to install an 
air conditioning unit within three feet of a property line for 5290 Meadville Street, as proposed. I further move the 
council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of 
the mailings in the property file.  

 

2. I move the City Council directs staff to draft FINDINGS FOR DENIAL of the variance request of Roland and Ranee 
Jacobus, 5290 Meadville Street, to be considered at the July 7, 2020 city council meeting.  

 
 
Key Dates: 
Application complete:    April 3, 2020 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  April 8, 2020 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  May 13, 2020 
City Council Consideration:   June 3, 2020 
60-Day Deadline:    May 22, 2020 
120-Day Deadline:    July 21, 2020 

 

Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 



Location Map

11/23/2017



 
 
To the Greenwood City Council: 
 
We are writing to ask you to objectively consider the AC variance that we have put before you.  
It is a request to place a 17” wide unit 8” off the south side of my house completely on my 
property, leaving 2+ feet on my property to walk around it.  The office building to the south sits 
40’ away, there is a row of arborvitae between us so it will not be visible, and the property 
manager for the building, who was given permission by the building owner to review the AC 
variance, has stated he has no problems with the unit being placed at the suggested location.  
 
At the May 13th Planning Commission meeting, public comment was made that my house 
required an excessive number of variances. I would like to take this opportunity to point out that 
the requested and approved variances for my 40'wide non-conforming lot are smaller in scope 
than those of the house under construction at 5260 Meadville, which is a t on a 50’wide non-
conforming lot and of 5190 Meadville’s 45’wide non-conforming lot, demonstrating it is not easy 
to build on these lots even with more width.    
 
5260 Meadville (Mr Steingas is builder) - December 2018:  Volume overage variance of 
4,811 cu ft; Front setback intrusion of 27.6’; Max Hard Cover 10.3% 
 
5290 Meadville (my house) - March 2019: Side lot 3.9', Side lot 3.8', Front setback intrusion of 
2.7’.   
 
5190 Meadville - May 2019:  Side lot 26.1’, Side lot 1.9', Front setback 1’, Wall height 30’, 
Volume variance of 912 cf  
 
I would like to highlight that both of these houses received volume variances, whereas I 
removed portions of my house after it was already built to comply with the City’s new 
size limits for houses.  
 
 
Two discussion points that the Commission raised are addressed below in hopes of answering 
any questions: 
 
First, we did not want to come to the City for an AC variance.  We were going to place our 
AC outside the 5’ setback on the NW corner of our house, but our neighbor asked that we move 
it due to fan noise on his back deck.  We then exhausted all other options prior to coming to the 
City to ask for the south side variance. Please read attached letter submitted by my mechanical 
contractor which addresses placement and AC service access.  
 
Second, we gave three viable options for lakeside access that are of the same size or 
more generous than others on Meadville.  I hope the visuals and narrative help.  
 
Access on our Property 
I want to assure the City Council that placing my AC unit on the south side of my house will not 
pose an access issue on a daily basis for us or our guests.  We haven’t decided on our outdoor 
lake traffic route as we haven’t moved in yet.  I have three options for access that are 
comparable or larger in size than other neighbors with non-conforming lots on Meadville Street. 
 

1. North Side:  We may choose to use this as our lake access.  We have 4-6’ of access to 

our backyard on the north side, which is larger than the access our neighbor uses (3’ 

sidewalk which is within 6” of property line).  The black biolog is sitting on the line.   



               
 

Please note that the space between our houses on this side increased by 4-6’, as we 
decreased the width of our new home from the footprint of the old home, moving that side 
away from neighbor.  Part of the existing foundation is still intact along the property line to 
hold up the grade where it widens to 6’, so we could create a small stairwell to get to 
backyard. 

 
 

2. Lake side: We also have direct access to the lake from our screen porch on the lake 
side of our house, so most people visiting us will be going through house and out the 
back door.  This will be how most of our visitors get to the lot. 
 

3. Pictures below of South side: There is 40’ between the commercial building and my 
property.  Picture on left shows the new line of arborvitae that have been planted, sitting 
10’ from property line and 14’ from our house.   Mr. Carlson knows that it is not our 
intention to abuse our neighbor’s property by using it as a walkway, and has no problem 
with emergency access if cleared with him. 

 
Picture on right shows the dedicated space between gas and electric meters we have 
prepared for my AC on the south side.  AC will be placed parallel along the house 8” 
from the house.  The only time we have less than 4’ to walk to lake on our property is for 
the 44” it takes to walk past the unit , leaving 2’ of space. 

 

                             

 
 

Mr. Steingas suggested that I place it on the front of my garage as shown in the pic 
below.  The assertion was if others can have it on the front of their house, so can I, even 



if that also requires a variance.  Unfair to lump all “fronts of houses” as equal.  I have a 
minimum of  5-10’ less width than “other houses” to work with.   I am unable to 
landscape around it without also creating lakeside access issues here.  We would bore 
the expense of running a new AC line and electrical box another 20 feet.  All negatives 
were addressed in my mechanical contractor’s letter. 

 

                    
   

 
Examples of access on other Meadville Non-Conforming Properties 
 
It is not uncommon to have limited access on at least one side of a property on the non-
conforming lots along Meadville Street.   
 
As support, we are including side yard lake access pictures of 4 other non-conforming lots on 
Meadville Street.   The next three houses down from us on our street are non-conforming.  
 

1. 5280, our next door neighbor, also has a lot that is 40’ wide.  Picture on left is our 
north side with them.  Our property line is where the black biolog is. The pic on left 
shows a cement walk 3’ wide he uses for himself and guests to access his main 
level door and walk to his lakeshore. If he or his visitors walk two abreast to his door 
they are walking on my property.  I have no plans to plant anything along my property 
line on this side.  Not much of a neighborhood if we are actually at the point where it is 
trespassing to step 1’ accidentally or even on purpose on to someone’s property when 
walking to their house or lake.   
 
The right picture shows he has NO access from the street to his lakeside for guests (see 
the lot line marked with flag on side of his garage) The stake by his garage in the 2nd 
picture shows his property line is at the edge of the top retaining wall.   Bottom line: 
There is very limited access on my neighbor’s property to his lakeshore as it 
stands today.  I am happy to be a good neighbor if the need arises for additional 
access. 
 



        
 
 
 
  

2. Next are pictures of the access between houses of the other two non-conforming 
lots on my street, both 50’ wide.     

 
First middle pic shows 5270 Meadville.  He has NO access on north side, as his house 
sits on the property line.  This house has the most south access of all properties I am 
showing for because his house is pushed so far to the north line.    

 
Middle and right pic shows 5260 Meadville new house has 8’ between houses on south 
side (middle pic), but they use their north side to access lake and it is 7’ wide. 

 

  
 
 

3. Two other houses farther to right down Meadville on non-conforming lots.  The 
lake access looks a little tight on both of them, as well.   
 
Left house is on a 45’ wide lot.  Lake access is around the street and back of house or 
off back porch.  At this residence, the air condition is on front of the house. However, it is 
a lot larger area and easier to landscape around the AC and hide it there than the area 
Mr. Steingas suggested I use for mine.  It is also a lot less of a nuisance for homeowner 
in this location.  Right picture is another newer house farther down Meadville.  Given the 
tree line on right and landscaping on left, It appears their access on both sides is narrow. 
 



             
 
 
I hope this helps with your analysis and discussion.  Thank you for your time and 
consideration.  
 
 
 
Randy & Ranee Jacobus 



X











pat
Text Box
Proposed Survey for 5260 Meadville Street





 

Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 1 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION NO XX-19 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPROVING  
 

In Re: Application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for the property at 5290 Meadville Street for a variance from 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.20 to encroach into the five foot setback to install an air conditioning 

unit on the south side of the house. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, Applicants Roland and Ranee Jacobus (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) are the owners of property commonly known 
as 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008) being real property located in 
Hennepin County, Minnesota and legally described as follows: 
 
THAT PART OF LOT 3, SOLBERG'S POINT, LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH 60 FEET THEREOF,  
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA. 
 
; and 

 
WHEREAS, the applicants propose to encroach into the south side yard setbacks to install an air conditioning unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the Planning Commission on May 13, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-33-0008)  
is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1 district. 
 
The applicants propose to install an air conditioning unit on the south side of the house that would be two feet from 
the south property line. Section 1140.20 of the city code requires air conditioning units be setback five feet from all 
property lines.   
 

2. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 



 

Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 2 of 3 

 

(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

3. The applicants assert that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 

 
4. Staff recommended approval of the variance request to install the air conditioning unit on the south side of the house 

based on the following findings:  
 

a) The variance is in harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance. The applicant has selected a narrow air 
conditioning unit to keep the encroachment to a minimum and is proposing to place the unit away from the single-
family residence to the north. Thus, the variance request is minor and remains in harmony with the purpose and 
intent of the ordinance.  

 
b) The variance is consistent with the comprehensive plan. The request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s 

Housing Elements Goals and Policies which encourage residents to maintain and/or modernize the Greenwood’s 
housing stock 

 
c) The proposal puts the property to use in a reasonable manner. Placing an air conditioning unit on the side of a 

house is typical in Greenwood and is a reasonable use of this property.  
 
d) There are unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner. The house was designed, 

approved and constructed without being able to place an air condition unit on any side of the house without the 
need of a variance.  

 
e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. The proposal would not alter the 

essential character of the locality.  Air conditioning units are typically placed on the side of houses.  
 

5. The Planning Commission, on a 2-1 vote, recommended the Council approve a one-foot variance with the condition 
that the air conditioning unit be placed in front of the house. Commission Nelson voted nay because the applicant did 
not support the motion.  
 

6. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the variance request complies with the practical difficulties 
standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the City Council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
granting of variances from sections 1120.15 and 1140.80(4)(c)(2) and therefore variances to encroach into the south side 
yard setback by 4.1 feet, to encroach into the front yard setback by 2.8 feet, to exceed the maximum permitted impervious 
surface area by 9.9%, and to exceed the maximum allowable construction related tree removal by 44% (32 diameter 
inches) in order to build an attached garage at 5290 Meadville Street be APPROVED. 
 
The approval is conditioned that: a) Applicants will pay the required landscape security to the city per city code Section 
1140.80 Subd. 9. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 



 

Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 3 of 3 

 

Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Roland and Ranee Jacobus for the property at 5290 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 for variances from sections 1140.20 and therefore a variance to encroach into five-foot setback from the south 
property line by three feet for the installation of an air conditioning unit at 5290 Meadville Street is APPROVED. 
 
PASSED this 3rd day of June, 2020 by the City Council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the City of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 



 

Agenda Number: 7D 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item: Public hearing to consider the conditional use permit amendment request of the Alvin E. McQuinn 
Revocable Trust, property owners, to regrade the property 4900 Meadville Street. 
 
Summary: Applicants purchased the property in June of 2018. A demolition permit was issued to remove the existing 
house on the property. The demolition permit allowed the applicants to backfill the area left by the house and driveway 
and generally bring up the grade of the demolition areas to that of the adjacent grade. Subsequent to demolition, the 
applicants brought in fill in excess of that which would have been permitted under the demolition permit or without a 
conditional use permit. The property is currently in an interim condition with some new fill brought in, but some top soil yet 
to be brought in as well. The grade for existing conditions is not final. Final grade will match that shown on the submitted 
site plan. 
 
On May 1, 2019, the City Council approved a Conditional Use Permit to alter the site by more than 1 foot in a 300-square-
foot area for the subject property. One of the conditions of the Conditional Use Permit was that the applicant remove the 
catch basin along Meadville Street. The applicant has designed an alternative grading plan that keeps the catch basin in 
place. The revised grading plan creates a swale along the north side of Meadville Street. If the existing catch basin is ever 
clogged with leaves or debris the stormwater will flow through the new swale and out down to Lake Minnetonka. The City 
Engineer has reviewed and approved the grading plan.  
 
On May 13, 2020, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council approve the amendment to the 
Conditional Use Permit (3-0 vote)  
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval with conditions of the conditional use permit amendment request of Alvin E. McQuinn 
Revocable Trust, property owners, to regrade the property at 4900 Meadville Street. Staff findings based on the CUP 
review criteria found in city code section 1155.20: 

a) The proposed use will comply with the regulations specified for the R-1 zoning district. 
b) The use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the R-1 zoning district. 
c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. 
d) The proposed use will be harmonious with the objective(s) of the comp plan, particularly the objective of: 

Maintaining the overall pattern of drainage from the property and not increasing stormwater runoff. 
e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 

And subject to the following conditions: 
A. Applicants will comply with the recommendations of the city engineer. 

 



 

Key Dates: 
Application complete:    April 8, 2020 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  May 21, 2020 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  May 13, 2020 
City Council Consideration:   June 3, 2020 
60-Day Deadline:    June 7, 2020 
120-Day Deadline:    August 6, 2020 

 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal 
findings of fact and the applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in 
writing the reasons for denial at the time that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written 
notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless 
approved by the applicant in writing). 

 

 



Location Map 

 

 



From 
Mathews Vasek Construction 
1040 Adams St. SE, Suite 2 
Hutchinson, MN 55350 
 
To 
City of Greenwood, Planning & Zoning Division 
20225 Cottagewood Road 
Deephaven, MN 55331 
 

As representation for the property owners of 4900 Meadville Street, we are requesting an amendment 
to the existing Conditional Use Permit approved in 2019. 

It was brought to our attention that the catch basin on the north side of Meadville Street, in the dead 
end portion of roadway, needs to have an overflow location if it were to back up with leaves or ice.  
Between the catch basin and the Eastern end of the road there is a slight crown, preventing the water 
from flowing adequately to the rock swale at the end of the street.  After meeting with neighboring 
property owners, city engineer, and city planner, we will hereby propose creating more fall and a deeper 
waterway, or swale, along the north side of Meadville Street.  The attached survey will illustrate the 
current conditions along with the proposed location of swale.  The swale will be sodded up until the 
point where it enters the East rock swale.     
 
With proper stormwater mitigation along the North side of Meadville Street, we can prevent a pooling 
of water if the said catch basin were to back up.  Between the catch basin and now this swale, all water 
will be directed across the 4900 Meadville Street property, filtering out down to the lake, and have zero 
effect on neighboring properties.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 

Sincerely, 

Andrew Vasek 

 

 

 

 





Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Typewritten Text
940'

Vasek
Typewritten Text
939'

Vasek
Typewritten Text
938'

Vasek
Callout
More swale and fall along roadside

Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Polygonal Line

Vasek
Polygonal Line





Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 1 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION NO XX-20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPROVING 
In Re: Application of Alvin E. McQuinn Revocable Trust for the property at 4900 Meadville Street for an 

amendment to the conditional use permit under Greenwood ordinance code sections 1140.19(3) and 1150.20 to 
permit grading or site / lot topography alterations that increase or decrease the average grade (existing 

compared to final conditions) by more than 1 foot in a 300 square foot area. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
WHEREAS, Applicants Alvin E. McQuinn Revocable Trust (hereinafter ‘Applicant’) is the owner of property commonly 
known as 4900 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0033) being real property located 
in Hennepin County, Minnesota and legally described as: 
 

 
; and 

 
WHERAS, on May 1, 2019, the Greenwood City Council approved a Conditional Use Permit to grade the subject property 
that would increase or decrease the average grade by more than 1 foot in a 300-square-foot area; and  
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposes to change the grading plans that were approved by the Greenwood City Council 
under Resolution No. 21-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the Planning Commission on May 13, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 4900 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0033) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1A district. 
 

2. The applicant is proposing to alter the grading plan approved by the City Council on May 1, 2019, which requires an 
amendment to the approved Conditional Use Permit.  

3.  
4. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20, Subd. 3, Conditional Use Permits (general regulations), the 

City Council may impose such conditions and safeguards upon the property benefitted by a CUP as may be 
necessary to maintain compatibility with other properties in the neighborhood.   
 



Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 2 of 3 

 

5. Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20, Subd 1 states: 
 
“Subd. 1. The Planning Commission shall make findings and recommendations to the City Council. The Council may 
then authorize a conditional use by resolution provided the evidence presented is such as to establish: 

 
(a) That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this ordinance for the district in which the 

proposed use is to be located. 
(b) That the use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the district in which it is to be located. 
(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general 

welfare of the neighborhood or city. 
(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. 
(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and 
will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will 
be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, 
noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with 
traffic on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values.” 
 

6. The applicant asserts that the proposed CUP amendment request complies with CUP standards in Greenwood 
ordinance sections 1140.19 and 1150.20, Subd 1. 
 

7. The Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the CUP amendment request and on a 3-0 vote 
recommended approval because the proposed CUP amendment request complies with the CUP standards in 
Greenwood ordinance sections 1140.19 and 1150.20, Subd 1. The approval recommendation is subject to the 
following conditions: 
  

(a) Applicants will comply with the recommendations of the city engineer. 
 
8. Based on the foregoing, the City Council determined that the proposed CUP amendment request complies with the 

CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance sections 1140.19 and 1150.20 subd 1, subject to the conditions noted in the 
above findings of fact. 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 
Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the City Council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
1. The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of sections 1140.19, and 1150.20 

necessary for the granting of a CUP amendment.  
 

2. The approval recommendation is subject to the following conditions: 
 

(a) Applicants will comply with the recommendations of the city engineer. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments that the City of Greenwood does hereby grant and issue a Conditional Use Permit amendment to 
alter site/lot topography that increases or decreases the average grade (existing compared to final conditions) by more 
than 1 foot in an area greater than 300 square for the property at 4900 Meadville Street. The granting of the CUP 
amendment is subject to the following conditions: 
 

(a) Applicants will comply with the recommendations of the city engineer. 



Greenwood Resolution XX-20   |   Page 3 of 3 

 

 
PASSED this 3rd day of June, 2020 by the City Council of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the City of Greenwood, Minnesota. 

 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 

 
 



ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7E 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: 1st Reading: Ord 298, Amending Construction Management Ordinance Section 305, Subd 1(b),  
Regarding Construction Hours 
 

Summary: Residents on Meadville Street and Fairview Street have expressed concern about having new home 
construction in the area for several years in a row and facing another summer of new home construction. The residents 
have asked the city council to consider changing construction hours.  
 

• Greenwood’s current code: Work at construction sites shall be limited to 7am to 9pm Monday through Friday and 8am 
to 7pm on weekends and holidays.   

• Shorewood’s code (Excelsior has similar language): Construction hours are between 7:00 am and 7:00 pm on 
weekdays and 8:00 am and 6:00 pm on Saturdays. Construction is prohibited on Sundays.  

• Edina’s code: Construction hours for demolition and new residential building permits are: Monday through Friday from 
7 a.m. to 7 p.m. Saturday from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. Sundays and Holidays (New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas) - Construction is Prohibited. 

• Proposed new language for Greenwood’s code (see draft of ordinance attached): Work at construction sites shall be 
limited to the following hours: Monday through Friday from 7am to 7pm and Saturday from 9am to 6pm. Work at 
construction sites is prohibited on Sundays and the following holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence 
Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.   

 

At the 03-04-20 City Council Meeting, the council reviewed the proposed ordinance and approved the following ... 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council directs the planning commission review and make a 
recommendation regarding ordinance 298. Second by Conrad. Motion passed 3-0. 

 

At the 05-13-20 Planning Commission Meeting, the planning commission reviewed the proposed ordinance. Their 
recommendation was unavailable at the time of assembling the 06-03-20 council packet. The planning commission 
minutes which include their recommendation regarding construction hours will be emailed to the city council separately. 
 

At the 06-03-20 City Council Meeting, the council will review the planning commission's recommendation and take 
action on the ordinance. For the council's reference, the proposed ordinance is attached. 
 

Timeline: 
03-04-20  The city council discussed the proposed ordinance and approved sending it to the planning commission. 
05-13-20 The planning commission reviewed the ordinance and made a recommendation. 
06-03-20  City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions / may waive 2nd reading). 
06-04-20 If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
06-11-20 If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
07-07-20 City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
07-09-20 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
07-16-20 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 

Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 298 amending the construction management 
ordinance code section 305 as written / as amended; and (2) waives the 2nd reading; and (4) directs staff to 
publish the ordinance in the city’s official newspaper. 

2. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 298 amending the construction management 
ordinance code section 305 as written / as amended; and (2) directs the ordinance be placed on the next city 
council agenda for a 2nd reading. 

3. Do nothing (maintain current ordinance) or other motion ??? 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading.  
There may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. The 2nd reading may be waived by a unanimous vote of city council members present at the 
meeting. In order to publish an ordinance by title and summary the ordinance must be approved by a 4/5ths vote. Ordinances go into effect once they 
are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any 
changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11.  
 



02-19-20 Greenwood Ordinance 298   |   Page 1 of 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 298 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE SECTION 305  

REGARDING CONSTRUCTION HOURS 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 305, subd 1(b) is amended to read as follows: 
 
Work at construction sites shall be limited to 7am to 9pm Monday through Friday and 8am to 7pm on weekends and 
holidays.   
 
Work at construction sites shall be limited to the following hours: Monday through Friday from 7am to 7pm and Saturday 
from 9am to 6pm. Work at construction sites is prohibited on Sundays and the following holidays: New Year's Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.   

 
SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2020. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2020 
Second reading: _____, 2020 
Publication: _____, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 



ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7F 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Amendments to Small Cell Wireless Ordinance 
 
Summary: Councilman Fletcher requested this item be included on the council agenda for discussion. For the council's 
reference, attached are materials from Edina regarding recent changes to their Small Cell Wireless Ordinance. 
 
At the 05-06-20 city council meeting, the consensus of the city council was that the council is okay with Fletcher 
contacting the League of MN Cities and the city attorney to get advice regarding a potential Small Cell Wireless ordinance 
and report back to the city council. 

At the 06-03-20 city council meeting, Fletcher will share what he learned with the city council. 

Council Action: No action required. Potential motions … 
 
1. I move the city council (1) directs staff to draft an ordinance amending the Greenwood code regarding small cell 

wireless facilities based on the council discussion, and (2) directs that the planning commission holds a public hearing 
and makes a recommendation to the city council regarding the ordinance.  
 

2. Do nothing or other motion. 
 



Date:  April  21, 2020  Agenda Item #: VI.H. 

To: Mayor and City Council Item Type:
Report / Recommendation 

From: Chad A. Millner, P.E. Director of Engineering
Item Activity:

Subject: Ordinance No. 2020-05: Repealing and Replacing
Sections of Chapter 24 of the Edina City Code
Concerning Small Wireless Facility Standards 

Action 
  

CITY OF EDINA
4801 West 50th Street

Edina, MN 55424
www.edinamn.gov

 

ACTION REQUESTED:
Approve Ordinance No. 2020-05, Repealing and Replacing Sections of Chapter 24 of the Edina City Code
Concerning Small Wireless Facility Standards and grant second reading.

INTRODUCTION:
Questions from first reading:

1. Redlines from Verizon: The City Attorney has reviewed the suggested edits to the ordinance from Verizon
Wireless and it is our opinion to keep the ordinance language as drafted.

2. Public Health: Applicants are required to submit radio frequency information detailing how their equipment
is in compliance with the FCC's Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) Limits for general public
exposure and occupational exposures to radio frequency electromagnetic energy.

 
This ordinance change allows shrouded small cell sites in all zoning districts except R1 Single Dwelling Unit and
R2 Double Dwelling Unit. It also clarifies specifications of the required concealed pole. Please see staff report
and graphics attached.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Staff Report: Ordinance No. 2020-05 Repealing and Replacing Sections of Chapter 24

Ordinance 2020-05: Repealing and Replacing Sections of Chapter 24

Appendix: Example of Antennae

http://www.edinamn.gov


 

 

 

 

 

April 21, 2020 

 
Mayor and City Council 

 
Chad A. Millner, P.E. Director of Engineering 

 

Ordinance No. 2020-05: Repealing and Replacing Sections of Chapter 24 of the    

Edina City Code Concerning Small Wireless Facility Standards 

 
Information / Background: 

 

Staff recommends repealing and replacing sections of Chapter 24 of the City Code concerning 

small wireless facility standards. The city attorney drafted recommended changes. The 

proposed changes allow shrouded small cell antennas in all zoning districts EXCEPT R1 Single 

Dwelling Unit and R2 Double Dwelling Unit. It also updates the design standards that require 

wireless facilities be concealed inside the support structure or below ground. 

Staff recommends adopting Ordinance 2020-05 and granting second reading.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 24, ARTICLE III 

OF THE EDINA CITY CODE CONCERNING SMALL 

WIRLESS FACILITIES AND WIRELESS SUPPORT 

STRUCTURES LOCATED IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF- 

WAY 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF EDINA ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1. Section 24-53.(d)(1) of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

(d) Standards for wireless telecommunication facilities.  

 

(1) Purpose. The city desires high quality wireless communication services to 

accommodate the needs of residents and businesses. At the same time, the city strives 

to minimize the negative impacts associated with wireless facility deployments. Such 

negative impacts may include interference with the right-of-way sight lines, aesthetic 

impacts that are inconsistent with the surrounding area, fall zone and clear zone risks, 

navigation obstacles, interference with future right-of-way improvement or 

transportation improvement plans, interference with the installation or maintenance of 

other utilities, and increased visual or noise pollution. Due to the many services that 

must be delivered within its limited area, the city also strives to avoid unnecessary 

encumbrances within the public right-of-way. The city allows and regulates wireless 

telecommunication facilities outside of the public right-of-way through performance 

standards and height limits. The purpose of this article is to regulate wireless 

telecommunication facilities within the public right-of-way in a manner that balances 

desire for service with aesthetic, public safety, and right-of-way flexibility concerns.  

 

To address such impacts, any person desiring to collocate wireless facilities or place 

new wireless support structures in the right-of-way must first obtain a wireless facility 

permit. Moreover, any person seeking to collocate a wireless facility on an existing 

wireless support structure owned or controlled by the city must first enter a standard 

collocation agreement.  

 

The following aesthetic standards and requirements are intended to maintain the city's 

aesthetic environment while also allowing for the availability of wireless services, 

including broadband and "5G" services, using small wireless facilities. These 

standards are intended to establish clear and consistent aesthetic standards for 

wireless facility placements in the city and establish a streamlined review and 

approval process. The city will make these standards publicly available. The city 

desires to promote aesthetically acceptable and area conforming wireless facilities 



using the smallest and least intrusive means available to provide wireless services to 

the community.  

 

These standards, which are meant to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, 

apply to all wireless telecommunication facilities on city-owned and non-city owned 

support structures and placement and replacement of wireless support structures in 

the public right-of-way. Wireless facilities and wireless support structures will be 

allowed in the public right-of-way as provided in this article and section 36-434. 

Compliance with these standards is a requirement for, and condition of, issuance of a 

small wireless facility permit. Any installation that does not conform to these 

standards will be in violation of the associated permit and the city's right-of-way 

ordinance.  

 

In addition to the following standards the placement of new support structures for 

small wireless facilities shall be subject to any conditions specified in the small 

wireless facility permit. Applications to install new wireless support structures in 

districts or areas zoned for single-family residential use or within a historic district 

established by federal or state law or city ordinance as of the date of application shall 

further be subject to any conditions contained in the required conditional use permit 

authorizing such installation.  

 

With respect to city-owned support structures, these standards additionally seek to:  

 

a.  Establish a menu of design options for providers to select from when applying 

for new small wireless facility permits associated with city support structures.  

 

b.  Minimize unnecessary placement of new poles by encouraging collocation of 

small wireless facilities.  

 

c.  In situations where city support structures will be replaced, require that the 

structures be of stealth design such that the maximum amount of facilities, 

including any wiring, are concealed inside the structure.  

 

d.  In situations where attachments will be made to existing poles, require that 

facilities, equipment, cabling, and conduit be concealed through the use of 

approved shrouding or camouflaging. 

 

Section 2. Section 24-53.(d)(2)d. of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

d.  The wireless telecommunication facility shall not extend more than ten feet above the 

top of thean existing public utility structure that was in place as of May 31, 2017 and 

the height of the existing public utility structure shall not be increased to 

accommodate the wireless telecommunication facility. 

 



Section 3. Section 24-53.(d)(2)e. of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

e.  If the public utility structure must be replaced to structurally accommodate the 

wireless telecommunication facility, the replacement public utility structure shall 

remain in its existing location unless otherwise permitted by the city. Replacement 

public utility structure height shall not exceed 50 feet above ground level or the 

height of the existing public utility structure height whichever is greater and the 

replacement public utility structure diameter shall not exceed the existing public 

utility structure diameter by more than 50 percent 24 inches in diameter from the 

ground level to 5 feet above ground level in height and from 5 feet above ground 

level in height to the top of the public utility structure the diameter shall not exceed 

the diameter needed for structure support. Concealed poles shall meet the 

specifications of a Valmont concealed pole or approved equal in size. 

 

Section 4. Section 24-53.(d)(2) of the Edina City Code is amended by adding paragraph m. as 

follows:   

 

m.  Shrouded small wireless facilities shall not be permitted in the right-of-way in any 

zoning district designated R1 (single dwelling unit district) or R2 (double dwelling 

unit district) but shall be permitted in the right-of-way in all other zoning districts. A 

shrouded small wireless facility is a small wireless facility that has all antennas and 

cables fully covered, concealed, or screened. 

 

Section 5. Section 24-53.(d)(3)c. of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

c.  The replacement public utility structure diameter shall not exceed the existing public 

utility structure diameter by more than 50 percent24 inches in diameter from the 

ground level to 5 feet above ground level in height and from 5 feet above ground 

level in height to the top of the public utility structure the diameter shall not exceed 

the diameter needed for structure support. Concealed poles shall meet the 

specifications of a Valmont concealed pole or approved equal in size. 

 

 

Section 6. Section 24-53.(d)(4)a. of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

(4)  Poles.  

 

a. The erection in the right-of-way of a new pole to support wireless 

telecommunication facilities is not allowed, except:  

 

1.  When attachment to existing utility or city poles is not feasible; or  

 

2.  The new pole is owned by the city; or  



 

3.  When the pole meets the definition of a wireless support structure. Wireless 

support structures are permitted in the public right-of-way in the R-1 zoning 

district by conditional use permit pursuant to section 36-434. Wireless support 

structures are a permitted use in the public right-of-way in all other zoning 

districts.  

 

 

Section 7. Section 24-53.(d)(4)b. of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline 

language and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

b. New and replacement poles when allowed shall not exceed 3550 feet in height or the 

height of the replaced wireless support structure whichever is greater and four feet in 

circumference and 24 inches in diameter from the ground level to 5 feet above ground 

level in height and from 5 feet above ground level in height to the top of the public 

utility structure the diameter shall not exceed the diameter needed for structure 

support. Concealed poles shall meet the specifications of a Valmont concealed pole or 

approved equal in size.except that new wireless support structures in the right of way 

shall not exceed 50 feet in height or the height of the replaced wireless support 

structure, whichever is greater.  

 

Section 8. Section 24-60 of the Edina City Code is amended by adding the underline language 

and removing the strikethrough language as follows: 

 

(a) Within 120 days following completion of any work pursuant to a permit, the 

registrant shall provide the engineer accurate maps and drawings certifying the as-

built location of all facilities and equipment installed, owned and maintained by the 

registrant. Such maps and drawings shall indicate both the horizontal and vertical 

location of all facilities and equipment and shall be provided in a format consistent 

with the city's electronic mapping system. Failure to provide maps and drawings in 

accordance with this section shall be grounds for revoking the permit holder's 

registration. 

 

(b) Additional Construction Information: In addition, the right-of-way user that installs a 

new or replacement wireless support structure or pole shall submit to city at the time 

the project is completed a completion certificate signed by an engineer licensed by 

the state of Minnesota verifying the wireless support structure or pole has been 

installed according to the structural design. 

 

Section 9. This ordinance is effective              ,2020. 

 

 

First Reading:  

 

Second Reading: 

 



Published: 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Sharon Allison, City Clerk    James A. Hovland, Mayor 

 

 

Please publish in the Edina Sun Current on: 

Send two affidavits of publication  

Bill to Edina City Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 

 

I, the undersigned duly appointed and acting City Clerk for the City of Edina, do hereby certify 

that the attached and foregoing Ordinance was duly adopted by the Edina City Council at its 

Regular Meeting of ___________________, 2017 and as recorded in the Minutes of Said 

Regular Meeting. 

 

 

WITNESS my hand and seal of said City this _______ day of ____________________, 2017. 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      City Clerk 

 



Appendix 

Example: Shrouded Small Cell Antennae 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Example: Valmont Concealed Antennae 

Pole 

 



 

Agenda Number: 9A 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider Right-of-Way encroachment request of Mark and Katherine Krezowski to construct 
retaining walls in the Meadville Street Right-of-Way as part of the construction of a new house located at 5130 
Meadville Street.  
 
Summary:  On May 1, 2019, the City Council approved four variances to construct a new house at 5130 Meadville Street. 
The approved survey (attached) showed two retaining walls that encroached into the City’s right-of-way. Because the 
survey was approved by the City Council, the applicant believed the location of those retaining walls were officially 
approved. However, a Right-of-Way encroachment agreement must be approved by the City Council. The retaining walls 
that were constructed are slightly longer than the retaining walls shown on the proposed survey (please see attached as-
built survey).  
 
The house that was razed also had similar retaining walls that encroached into the City’s Right-of-Way. That house was 
built in 1918.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Because the retaining walls that have been built and are located within the City’s right-of-way do not impede public use of 
the road located within the right-of-way, staff recommends approval of the right-of-way encroachment agreement with 
Mark and Katherine Krezowski to construct retaining walls within the City’s right-of-way adjacent to the property located at 
5130 Meadville Street, as proposed. 
 
The City Council has to determine the appropriate right-of-way encroachment fee.  
 

  





Location Map

11/23/2017











  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 11A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects.  
 
Related documents are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the packet 
available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2019 2020 Prior Month Prior Year List
12/16 - 1/15 10,255 5,355 -211 -4,900 176
1/16 - 2/15 10,576 5,853 498 -4,723 175
2/16 - 3/15 9,038 6,408 555 -2,630 159
3/16 - 4/15 9,638 6,597 189 -3,041 159
4/16 - 5/15 14,074 8,890 2,293 -5,184 159
5/16 - 6/15 11,420 -8,890 -11,420
6/16 - 7/15 8,766 0 -8,766
7/16 - 8/15 7,489 0 -7,489
8/16 - 9/15 6,326 0 -6,326
9/16 - 10/15 6,531 0 -6,531
10/16 - 11/15 6,049 0 -6,049
11/16 - 12/15 5,566 0 -5,566

AVERAGE 8,811 6,621

POPULATION: 708
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 24.61%

Population source: www.metrocouncil.org, Data & Maps, Download Data, Population and Household Estimates
Population figure updated: 05.19.20

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

12
/16

 - 1
/15

1/1
6 -

 2/
15

2/1
6 -

 3/
15

3/1
6 -

 4/
15

4/1
6 -

 5/
15

5/1
6 -

 6/
15

6/1
6 -

 7/
15

7/1
6 -

 8/
15

8/1
6 -

 9/
15

9/1
6 -

 10
/15

10
/16

 - 1
1/1

5

11
/16

 - 1
2/1

5

City of Greenwood
Website Total Hits

2019

2020



Welcome, Debra Kind | ? Help | Logout

 
CONTENT TOOLS DATA CENTER SITE MANAGEMENT SECURITY

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the previous month. Statistics for the
Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site
while administering it are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been purged
from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The second report - Unique Visitors by
Section - shows the total page views for each section without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP
addresses). For example, if you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing of
that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only lists sections that have had
traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those sections without traffic.

Begin Date 4/16/2020

End Date 5/15/2020

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 2023 22.76%
Agendas, Public Notices, Minutes, Meeting Packets 950 10.69%
Welcome to Greenwood 576 6.48%
City Departments 531 5.97%
Planning Commission 390 4.39%
Spring Clean-Up Day 316 3.55%
RFPs & Bids 279 3.14%
Assessments & Taxes 230 2.59%
Forms, Permits, Licenses 223 2.51%
Code Book of Ordinances 214 2.41%
Mayor & City Council 196 2.2%
Watercraft Spaces 156 1.75%
Meetings on TV 154 1.73%
Agendas, Public Notices, Minutes, Meetings 154 1.73%
Budget & Finances 145 1.63%
Community Surveys 136 1.53%
Garbage & Recycling 134 1.51%
Links 111 1.25%
Elections, Voting 106 1.19%
Public Safety 105 1.18%
Coyotes & Animal Services 103 1.16%
Lake Minnetonka 102 1.15%
Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 102 1.15%
City Newsletters 94 1.06%
Meetings 87 0.98%
Search Results 87 0.98%
St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 86 0.97%
Photo Gallery 84 0.94%
Email Sign-Up 82 0.92%
Comp Plan 79 0.89%
Tree Contractors 75 0.84%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://responsivehelp.govoffice.com/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B3BFA3AB3-AA76-4A00-8754-141DBE33C293%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BCB8A0ECB-76AF-4FAD-B8AC-08ED37459E8B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1


Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 74 0.83%
Homesteading 68 0.76%
Emergency Preparedness 66 0.74%
News, Events 60 0.67%
Old Log Events 58 0.65%
Fire Department 56 0.63%
Toilet Drain Guide 55 0.62%
Recreation, Amenities 52 0.58%
Finances, Taxes, Assessments 50 0.56%
July 4th 38 0.43%
Well Water 38 0.43%
Tour de Tonka 35 0.39%
Smoke Testing 30 0.34%
Library Events 28 0.31%
SABLID Email Sign-Up 24 0.27%
Luck O' the Lake 24 0.27%
Christkindlsmarkt 24 0.27%
TOTAL 8890 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 987 19.4%
City Departments 383 7.53%
Agendas, Public Notices, Minutes, Meeting Packets 353 6.94%
Welcome to Greenwood 314 6.17%
Spring Clean-Up Day 219 4.31%
Forms, Permits, Licenses 140 2.75%
Planning Commission 133 2.61%
Mayor & City Council 132 2.59%
Code Book of Ordinances 132 2.59%
Meetings on TV 114 2.24%
Assessments & Taxes 102 2.01%
Garbage & Recycling 101 1.99%
Agendas, Public Notices, Minutes, Meetings 94 1.85%
Links 88 1.73%
Watercraft Spaces 86 1.69%
Community Surveys 85 1.67%
Lake Minnetonka 78 1.53%
Public Safety 75 1.47%
Elections, Voting 75 1.47%
Coyotes & Animal Services 72 1.42%
Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 71 1.4%
Photo Gallery 69 1.36%
St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 68 1.34%
Comp Plan 67 1.32%
Meetings 65 1.28%
City Newsletters 65 1.28%
Email Sign-Up 65 1.28%
Tree Contractors 65 1.28%
RFPs & Bids 58 1.14%
Homesteading 58 1.14%
Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 54 1.06%
Emergency Preparedness 53 1.04%
Budget & Finances 52 1.02%
Search Results 48 0.94%
Fire Department 48 0.94%
News, Events 47 0.92%
Toilet Drain Guide 46 0.9%
Finances, Taxes, Assessments 44 0.86%
Old Log Events 43 0.85%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BD3D9ABB0-CC92-4C54-89F3-D3C8FC9DACA8%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86A708E7-BE00-49D5-B4E1-C6C442D57AA8%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BDC72D100-6B66-4675-AAD3-BCEA56CADF38%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE32365BF-D669-49D0-983D-2387DB8F6735%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE36FF7B9-855A-4B43-A3D3-268F500FEA36%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8C357980-B476-4C47-A644-4438BBABA5FA%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B07F329B3-E4DB-4917-ABEE-96B4435790CB%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B92C503B2-495E-4AB9-88DC-2432B12AC82B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA277312C-3B84-4C04-9407-A83B80253CEB%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B972AEC2C-D900-4CBB-AA9A-CE827BE448DC%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B54847F9E-6D9F-405E-B61A-B242A5B61F4B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B0DE6A14D-4E59-4392-8760-3555039C657B%7D&BeginDate=4/16/2020&EndDate=5/15/2020&report=1


" Contact Us | # 1 (888) 353-3221 | ? Help | $ Blog

Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Recreation, Amenities 36 0.71%
July 4th 35 0.69%
Well Water 32 0.63%
Tour de Tonka 30 0.59%
Smoke Testing 24 0.47%
Library Events 22 0.43%
Christkindlsmarkt 20 0.39%
Luck O' the Lake 20 0.39%
SABLID Email Sign-Up 19 0.37%
TOTAL 5087 100%

Done

https://govoffice.com/techsupport
tel:1-888-353-3221
https://responsivehelp.govoffice.com/
http://blog.govoffice.com/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement


ÓäÓÓxÊ
"//��7""�Ê,�]Ê�*��6 ]Ê� ÊxxÎÎ£ÊUÊ Ê* \ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°ÈÈÎÎ   UÊÊ�\ Ê�xÓ°{Ç{°£ÓÇ{ÊUÊwww.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

 WORKSESSION 

Agenda Date: 06-03-20 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss 2021 City Services 
 
At the 05-06-20 city council worksession, Mayor Kind shared that the Deephaven city administrator told her that 
Deephaven will not be able to provide public works and planning and zoning services for Greenwood beginning 01.01.21. 
Currently, Greenwood contracts for most services through the city of Deephaven. They provide meeting space, 
administrative services, bookkeeping, utility billing, zoning and planning, public works, and more. At the worksession, the 
city council discussed the situation and decided to explore all options for providing city services – including the option of 
staying with Deephaven for some services or contracting all city services with other providers.  

On 05-07-20, the city received the attached Service Contract proposal from Deephaven. 

At the 06-03-20 city council meeting, the council will discuss the Deephaven Service Contract proposal and other 
options for city services. 

Council Action: The city council cannot take action at worksessions. 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

 
 
May 7, 2020 
 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Deb Kind & Greenwood City Council 
From:  Dana H. Young, Deephaven City Administrator 
Re:  Proposed 2021 Contract for Services 
 
 
Summary 
I have provided this summary of the proposed 2021 Contract for Services between the City of 
Deephaven and the City of Greenwood for your review.  The 2021 contract proposes to provide 
services in the following three areas: 
 

• Clerical Services. 
• Building Inspection Services 
• City Hall Rent. 

 
Clerical Services  
Deephaven would provide clerical services in 2021 according to the scope of clerical services 
outlined in the attached document entitled Greenwood of Clerical Services.  Clerical service fees 
would be determined by averaging the actual hourly wage and benefits of the three key personnel 
most involved in providing Greenwood Clerical Services – the City Clerk (Dana Young), 
Finance Clerk (Tracy Gustafson) & Utility Clerk (Deborah Hicks).  The average weekly hours of 
clerical service has been calculated at 18 hours per week, which has been determined by 
historical usage.    
 
Building Inspection Services  
Deephaven proposes to pay all costs relating to Building Inspection Services including 
Deephaven’s staff time and the cost of Minnetonka’s plan review & inspections.  The following 
building permit formula is proposed to remain unchanged 2021 at: 
 

• 69% of Greenwood Building Permit Fees is kept by the City of Deephaven and 31% is 
kept by the City of Greenwood. 

 
The purpose and design of the building permit formula is to enable Deephaven to recover two 
costs relating to the administration of building permits.  The costs include: 
 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

• The cost of Minnetonka’s plan review & inspection services provided on behalf of the 
City of Greenwood, which has averaged $18,264 per year over the last five years.   

 
• Greenwood Building Permit fees also reimburse Deephaven for additional staff and 

operational costs required to administer and process the permits.   
 
City Hall Rent   
Deephaven proposes to charge $500.00 per month for the use of Deephaven City Hall to conduct 
two monthly meetings per month and for the storage of documents.  This fee replaces the 
Equipment Rental Charge.     
 
Zoning Coordinator Services / Public Works Services  
Both of these services are no longer offered beginning in 2021. 
 
Summary 
On behalf of the City of Deephaven, I would like to thank the Greenwood City Council for the 
many years of cooperative service between our two communities and look forward to continuing 
to provide Greenwood and its residents with exceptional service in 2021. 
  
Attachments: 

• Resolution No. XX-20, Approving 2021 Contract with the City of Deephaven  
• 2021 Schedule of Fees 
• Greenwood Clerical Services  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD & CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING FOR 2021 
 

RESOLUTION NO. XX-20 
 

  
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59 provides that two cities may jointly or 
cooperatively exercise any power common to the Cities, including those which are the 
same except for the territorial limits within which they may be exercised; and 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes Section 471.59 further provides that an agreement for 
such joint exercise of powers may provide for the exercise of such powers by one of the 
Cities on behalf of both Cities; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire and intention of the parties hereto to set forth in writing their 
agreements and understandings relative to the joint and cooperative exercise of such 
powers and to set forth the methods by which such powers shall be exercised and the 
costs thereof share; and 
 
AND WHEREAS, the city councils of Greenwood and Deephaven have each 
determined that it will be in the best interests of their respective Cities to jointly and 
cooperatively exercise such powers in the manner provided for therein, and that the 
same shall be for a mutual benefit of both Cities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF DEEPHAVEN WILL 
PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING SERVICES AT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS AND 
COSTS: 
  
1. Building Inspection Services 

a) Building Permit Fees, plan check fees and other fees collected in connection with 
the issuance of building permits will be divided between the parties 69%-31%, 
with 69% payable to Deephaven and 31% payable to Greenwood.   

b) All applicable building permit fees will be paid quarterly to the City of Deephaven.  
 
2. Monthly Rental Charge 

a) The City of Deephaven shall lease to the City of Greenwood space within 
Deephaven City Hall for appropriate office and storage space and to provide the 
Council Chambers to conduct two public meetings per month for the Greenwood 
City Council and the Greenwood Planning Commission.  The $500.00 monthly 
rental charge will be paid monthly to the City of Deephaven. 

 
3. Clerical Services 

The City of Deephaven shall provide clerical services to the City of Greenwood in 
the amount of $887.22 per month.  All clerical services provided to Greenwood will 
be based on an 18 hour work week charged at the average hourly rate of the City 
Clerk, Finance Clerk & Utility Billing Clerk.  All payments for clerical services will be 
paid monthly to the City of Deephaven. 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

 
4. Joint Board 

The Joint Board will consist of the Mayors from each City.  The Joint Board will meet 
as needed to clarify the scope of services provided by the City of Deephaven. 

 
5. Terms of Agreement  

The term of this agreement is for one year effective on January 1, 2021 and expiring 
on December 31, 2021.  Either party may terminate or re-negotiate the terms of this 
agreement upon giving the other party a 180-day notice. 

 
6. Deephaven/Greenwood Contract 

The Mayor and City Clerk of the Cities of Deephaven and Greenwood are hereby 
authorized to enter into a mutually agreeable contract that more specifically 
describes the terms and conditions of this agreement upon the adoption of the Joint 
Resolutions. 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Greenwood this 3rd day of June, 2020 and 
by the Council of the City of Deephaven this 15th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD         CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor                                        Paul A. Skrede, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:        Attest: 
 
______________________________            _____________________________ 
Dana H. Young, City Clerk     Dana H. Young, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

       
   City of Greenwood     
  Schedule of Fees      
  2021     
       
 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Services Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 
 Rates Rates Rates Rates Rates 

       
Public Works           
Labor Cost per Hour $38.01  $39.30  $40.09  $43.09  $0.00  
Vehicle Cost per Hour $57.19  $58.90  $60.67  $62.49  $0.00  

        
       
Zoning Coordinator       
Labor Cost per Hour $36.85  $39.06  $41.52  $45.03  $0.00  

      
       
City Hall Rental Fee      
Monthly Cost   $425.00  $425.00  $425.00  $425.00  $500.00  

      
       
Equipment Rental Charge      
Monthly Cost $62.45  $62.45  $62.45  $62.45  $0.00  

      
       
Building Permit Fees      
Deephaven % 69.00% 69.00% 69.00% 69.00% 69.00% 
Greenwood % 31.00% 31.00% 31.00% 31.00% 31.00% 

      
       
Clerical Service Fees      
Labor Hourly Rate $45.37  $42.42  $44.90  $47.59  $49.29  
Weekly Hours 18 18 18 18 18 
Total Weekly Fee $816.66  $763.56  $808.20  $856.62  $887.22  

           
      
      

Clerical = Actual averaged hourly wage & benefits (PERA, FICA, Medicare & Health Insurance) for  
 Clerk, Utility Clerk & Finance Clerk   
      
      

 
 
 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

 
 

GREENWOOD CLERICAL SERVICES 
 
 
 

A. Services to be performed.  The City of Deephaven will perform the following services 
on behalf of the City of Greenwood. 
 
1. Deephaven will provide the appropriate clerical staff to work, on average, 18 

hours per week in performing the services described in this Exhibit. 
 
2. Deephaven will maintain a physical City office to which residents of Greenwood 

may come for assistance and to obtain all the necessary licenses, applications, 
homestead exemptions, utility billing payments and building permits required by 
the City of Greenwood. 

 
3. Provide personal and telephone assistance during normal business hours for the 

citizens of Greenwood. 
 

4. Keep available forms for applications for permits and licenses to be issued by the 
City of Greenwood, including applications for building permits, and provide 
routine clerical assistance to individuals in completing such applications. 

 
5. Perform the utility billing based upon the individual charges for utility service, 

including the preparation and mailing of statements and receipt of an accounting 
for payments from Greenwood residents. 

 
6. Perform routine bookkeeping services for the City of Greenwood, including bank 

deposits, preparation of payables, the General Ledger, and monthly and annual 
financial reports. 

 
7. Assist the designated City Auditor in preparing the annual audit of City financial 

statements. 
 

8. Administration of City marina waiting lists, marina revenue and marina leases. 
 

9. Administrate local, state and federal elections for the City of Greenwood. 
 

10. Provide the appropriate meeting space in which to conduct monthly meetings of 
the Greenwood City Council and other meetings when appropriate. 

 
11. Printing and assembly of Council packets. 

 
12. Administration of liquor licenses. 
13. Represent Greenwood at fire / police board meetings. 

 



City of Deephaven 20225 Cottagewood Rd, Deephaven, MN.  55331 P: 952-474-4755 F: 952-474-1274 
www.cityofdeephaven.org  

14. Development and administration of administrative policies, resolutions and 
ordinances. 

 
15. Represent the City of Greenwood as their City Clerk on matters pertaining to the 

state and federal governments and other governmental units or agencies, but not 
as their legal representative. 

 
16. Perform any additional duties, tasks or responsibilities as directed by the Mayor 

or City Council, subject to the approval of the Deephaven City Administrator and 
Mayor of the City of Deephaven.  

 
17. Maintain all records of the City of Greenwood as recommended by the Record 

Retention Program provided by the Minnesota Department of Administration. 
  
B.  Services performed by Mayor Kind.  The City of Deephaven is able to provide 

Clerical Services for 18 hours per week with the understanding that Mayor Kind provides 
the following list of services that are routinely performed by a City Clerk.  If this 
following list of services is no longer provided by Greenwood, the Clerical Services 
contract will have to be revisited by both cities. 

  
• Prepares monthly city council agendas  
• Prepares content for monthly city council meeting packets 
• Drafts ordinances and resolutions 
• Updates city code book with approved ordinances 
• Maintains city website 
• Manages city email system 
• Writes and formats the city newsletter 
• Drafts city council meeting minutes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 


	2020 06-03 Agenda
	2020 05-06 Minutes - Worksession
	2020 05-06 Minutes
	2020 05-13 Joint Worksession Minutes
	2020 City of Greenwood CD sheet (002).xls  -  Compatibility Mode
	- MEMO LMCD Budget
	Letter Member Cities LMCD Prelim 2021 Budget 05202020 DRAFT
	- Staff report - lot combination
	Lot Combination Map
	Lot Combination

	Res 16-20 Fetters Lot Combination
	- MEMO City Engineer
	- MEMO I:I Presentation
	- MEMO 21750 Byron Circle
	A Application
	A Application & Engineer's Report
	21750 Bryon application and attachments


	A Existing Bluff 1-24-20 Stark Engineering
	B Aerial View with Direction of Perspective Shown in Blue
	C Plan with Perspective Viewpoint Indicated in Blue
	D Grading Plan 1-22-20
	D Perspective
	E Conceptual Planting Plan
	F Lakeside rendering
	Res 07-20 CUP 21750 Byron D2
	- MEMO Lake Setback for Accesssory Structures
	Ord 299 Lake Setbacks for Accessory Sturctures REVISED at 05.06.20 CC mtg
	Res 11-20 Summary of Ord 299
	- Item 7C- 5290 Meadville St
	Staff report - CC
	Location Map
	Location Map

	AC Variance Letter to Council
	Site Plan with proposed AC Placement
	AC Info
	photo of proposed AC unit
	Letter from HVAC contractor
	proposed survey for 5260 Meadville
	public comment
	Resolution 5290 Meadville

	- Item 7D - 4900 Meadville
	staff report - CC
	Location Map
	narrative
	Graded Survey - existing
	Graded Survey - Swale
	engineering comments
	CUP Resolution 4900 Meadville

	- MEMO Construction Hours
	Ord 298 Construction Hours
	- Memo Small Cell Wireless
	Edina Small Wireless Ordinance
	Agenda_2020_4_21_Meeting(1505)
	Ordinance No. 2020-05: Repealing and Replacing Sections of Chapter 24 of the Edina City Code Concerning Small Wireless Facility Standards


	Item 9A - 5130 Meadville ROW encroachment
	staff report
	ROW application
	location map
	Location Map

	survey
	As-built survey
	picture 2
	picture

	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	2020 04-16 to 05-15 Web Chart.xls  -  Compatibility Mode
	2020 05-15 Web Report
	- Memo Worksession
	Greenwood 2021 Contract Memo



